
County Commission 
400 East Locust Street, Room 201 

Union, MO 63084 

Regular Meeting 

Agenda 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

Tuesday, September 10, 2019 10:00 AM Commission Chambers 

Opening 

I. Call to Order

Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

II. Navigate Presentation
III. Minutes Approval

1. Monday, August 26, 2019
2. Tuesday, August 27, 2019
3. Thursday, August 29, 2019
4. Thursday, August 29, 2019
5. Thursday, September 5, 2019

IV. Public Request for Discussion/Action

V. Action Items

a. Commission Order 2019-388 In the Matter of Approving the Authorization and Direction of Bank
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.  to Invest Cash Balances in a Money Market Fund
through the Bank of New York Mellon

b. Commission Order 2019-389 In the Matter of Authorizing Execution of a Direct Bill Application
with Oasis Hotel and Convention Center

c. Commission Order 2019-390 In the Matter of Appointment to the Franklin County Community
Resource Board (FCCRB)

d. Commission Order 2019-391 In the Matter of Fixing the Property Tax Rates of the County of
Franklin for the Year 2019

e. Commission Order 2019-392 A Resolution of Franklin County Adopting the St. Louis Regional
Hazard Mitigation Plan

County Commission Agenda Page 1 August 27, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 
 

 
f. Commission Order 2019-393 In the Matter of Accepting an Offer to Purchase Certain Real 

Property from Franklin County and Authorizing Execution of a Trustee’s Deed in Order to Convey 
Such Property  
 

g. Commission Order 2019-394 In the Matter of Accepting an Offer to Purchase Certain Real 
Property from Franklin County and Authorizing Execution of a Trustee’s Deed in Order to Convey 
Such Property 

 
h. Commission Order 2019-395 In the Matter of Accepting an Offer to Purchase Certain Real 

Property from Franklin County and Authorizing Execution of a Trustee’s Deed in Order to Convey 
Such Property 
 

i. Commission Order 2019-396 In the Matter of Approving a Financial Assistance Sub-Award 
Agreement with East-West Gateway Council of Governments for the Benefit of the Franklin 
County Emergency Management Agency for Emergency Response Equipment and Supplies 
 

j. Commission Order 2019-397 In the Matter of Approving the Consent Agenda and the Items 
Listed Thereon 

 
VI. Discussion Items and Reports 
 
 A. Elected Official and Departmental Reports (As Needed) 
 
 B. Commission Discussion 
 
VII. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

County Commission AGENDA Page 2 August 27, 2019 



 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Regular Meeting 

Agenda 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

Monday, August 26, 2019 1:00 PM Training Rm 207 

   

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant     
Todd Boland, 1ST District Commissioner     
Angie Hittson, Health Dept. Director     
Bill Placht, Building Dept. Director     
Tammy Vemmer, Auditor     
Abe Cook, EMA Director     
Debbie Aholt, Treasurer     
Tony Henry, Maintenance Director     
Ron Williams, Hwy Administrator     
Mary Jo Straatmann, Public Administrator     
Tim Baker, Clerk     

Scottie Eagan, Planning and Zoning     
Mark Piontek, County Counselor     

 
II. Elected Officials and Department Heads Monthly Discussion 

All attending elected officials and department heads provided an update of their respective departments. 
 

III. Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 1:18 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

County Commission MINUTES Page1 August 26, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

  
County Commission 

400 East Locust Street, Room 201 

 Union, MO 63084 

Regular Meeting 

MINUTES 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Tuesday, August 27, 2019 10:00 AM Commission Chambers 

Opening 
  

I. Call to Order   

 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant     
Mark Piontek, County Counselor     
Monte Miller, Missourian     
Jenny Metcalf, Recorder     
Tammy Vemmer, Auditor     
Doug Trentmann, Collector     
Lt. Pendelton     
Larry Davis, Invocation     
Christa Buchanan, Deputy County Clerk     
Lt. Scott Reed     
Tim Miller, Highway Department     
Bill Carroll, Highway Department     
Ron Williams, Highway Administrator     
Mike Davis, Highway Department     
Joy Howard, WM Financial     
Mark Grimm, Gilmore & Bell, P.C.     
Tom Copeland, Assessor     

 

II. Minutes Approval 
 

1. Tuesday, August 20, 2019 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

2. Tuesday, August 20, 2019 
 
 
 

County Commission MINUTES Page 1 August 27, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 
 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

3. Thursday, August 22, 2019 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

4. Thursday, August 22, 2019 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
III. Public Request for Discussion/Action 

 
IV. Action Items 

a. Commission Order 2019-370 In the Matter of Approving Execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding Between Franklin County and the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

b. Commission Order 2019-371 In the Matter of Setting the Emergency 911 Tax Rate for Year 2020 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

c. Commission Order 2019-372 In the Matter of Adjustment of Tax Charges of Personal Property Tax 
Book for the Year 2018 & Prior to Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue for Franklin County – May 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

d. Commission Order 2019-373 In the Matter of Adjustment of Tax Charges of Personal Property Tax 
Book for the Year 2018 & Prior to Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue for Franklin County – June 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
County Commission MINUTES Page 2 August 27, 2019 



 
 

 
e. Commission Order 2019-374 In the Matter of Adjustment of Tax Charges of Personal Property Tax 

Book for the Year 2018 & Prior to Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue for Franklin County – July 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

f. Commission Order 2019-375 In the Matter of Authorizing Payment of Services to Lewis, Reed & 
Allen, P.C. 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

g. Commission Order 2019-376 In the Matter of Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Property Tax 
Rates for 2019 for the County of Franklin 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

h. Commission Order 2019-377 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Acceptance of a Grant for 
the Child Passenger Safety Enforcement Campaign 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

i. Commission Order 2019-378 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of a Funding 
Agreement with the Drug Enforcement Administration and the Franklin County Sheriff’s Office 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

j. Commission Order 2019-379 In the Matter of Authorizing Payment for Services to George E. 
Sansoucy, PE, LLC 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

k. Commission Order 2019-380 In the Matter of Awarding Bids for Road Salt 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
 

County Commission MINUTES Page 3 August 27, 2019 



 
 

 
l. Commission Order 2019-381 In the Matter of Awarding Bids for Hot Mix Overlay – Evergreen Loop 

Road 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

m. Commission Order 2019-382 In the Matter of Awarding Bids for Hot Mix Overlay – Bluff Road 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

n. Commission Order 2019-383 In the Matter of Authorizing Termination of an Existing Maintenance 
Agreement with Ricoh-USA 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

o. Commission Order 2019-384 In the Matter of Authorizing and Approving and Agreement with Insight 
for the Collector’s Office 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

p. Commission Order 2019-385 In the Matter of Approving the Purchase of an Evidence Space Saver 
Storage System for the Franklin County Public Safety Facility 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

q. Commission Order 2019-386 In the Matter of Approving the Consent Agenda and all Items Listed 
Thereon 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

r. Commission Order 2019-387 In the Matter of Authorizing Franklin County, Missouri to Enter into a 
Lease Purchase Transaction, the Proceeds of Which will be used to Pay Costs of Public Safety 
Improvements and to Refund Certain of the County’s Outstanding Certificates of Participation and 
Authorizing the Execution of Certain Documents and Actions in Connection Therewith 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
County Commission MINUTES Page 4 August 27, 2019 



 
 

 
 

 
V. Discussion Items and Reports 
 
 A. Elected Official and Departmental Reports (As Needed) 
 
 B. Commission Discussion 
   - Commissioner Hinson requests additional information on Missouri Department of Transportation 
   funding from Ron Williams, Highway Administrator 
   - Presiding Commissioner Brinker states there will not be a Commission meeting on Tuesday,  
   September 3, 2019. The next, regular Commission meeting will be Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
 
VI. Years of Service Recognition 
 
 A. Timothy Miller, 25 years of service 1994-2019 
 
 
VII. Adjournment 
 Motion to adjourn meeting made at 10:20 a.m. 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission MINUTES Page 5 August 27, 2019 



 
 

 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Working Session 

MINUTES 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

Thursday, August 29, 2019 11:00 AM Commission Conf. Room 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Angela Gibson, Assistant     
Bill Placht, Building Department Director     

 
 

II. Commission Workshop Meeting 
 
Discussion was held with Bill Placht regarding a refund request received in the Building Department. 
Instruction was given to continue with the current regulations in place. 
 
Further discussion was held on ongoing and upcoming action items. 

 
III. Adjournment 

 
No further discussion was held. Meeting adjourned at 11:30 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1  

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Working Session 

MINUTES 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Thursday, August 29, 2019 1:30 PM Commission Conf. Room 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Mark Piontek, County Counselor     
Lauren Drumm, HR Director     
Tammy Vemmer, Auditor     
Debbie Aholt, Treasurer     

II. Insurance Premium Discussion 
 
  Discussion was held on total cap on County out of pocket expenses.  
  According to the Auditor, based on current projections, the County should be even or just  
  a little bit ahead at the end of the year. 
  If there is a shortfall there will need to be an adjustment of premiums across the board for  
  all employees. 
  
  A meeting with Wilson Insurance & Co. will be held Thursday, September 5, 2019.  

 
 

III. Adjournment 
 
  No further discussion. Meeting adjourned at 3:15 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1  

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Working Session 

MINUTES 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

Thursday, September 5, 2019 1:00 PM Commission Conf. Room 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    1:00 p.m. 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     
First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Angela Gibson, Assistant     
Mark Piontek, County Counselor     
Jen Kissinger, Navigate     
Jere Sheehan, Navigate     
Nick Beishir, FGM Architects     
Abe Cook, EMA Director     

 
 

II. Commission Workshop Meeting 
 

a. Navigate provided a financial update on the Franklin County Public Safety Facility project.  
 
Motion was made to approve Navigate proceeding with building a berm between the Sheriff’s 
Department firing range and a residential property.  

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
 Further discussion was held regarding recommended hardware adjustments.  
 

b. Abe Cook, EMA Director, discussed with the County Counselor the sale of the Washington County 
property. 

 
c. Discussion was held on ongoing and upcoming action items.  

 
 

III. Adjournment 
  
 Nothing further to discuss. Meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page1  

http://www.franklinmo.org/


Commission Order No.  2019-388 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreement 
 

Commission Order 2019-388 Page 1 

ss. 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE  
AUTHORIZATION AND DIRECTION OF BANK  
OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A.  
TO INVEST CASH BALANCES IN A MONEY MARKET 
FUND THROUGH THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 
 
WHEREAS, on September 1, 2019, Franklin County entered into a Second Supplemental Declaration of Trust 
Certificates of Participation Series 2019A and 2019B with The Bank of New York Mellon Company, N.A.; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is now the desire of Franklin County to execute an agreement, attached hereto, approving the 
authorization and direction of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. to invest the cash balances 
in a money market mutual fund through The Bank of New York Mellon. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, that the Authorization and Direction to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A. is hereby approved and the Presiding Commissioner, Tim Brinker, is authorized to execute any 
and all necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, for and on 
behalf of and as the act and deed of the County.   
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County are 
hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other documents, 
certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 
Order.       
 
 

____________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
             Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
            Commissioner of 2nd District 
 
 
 
 
 
 



X9X9USDFUSY0 

 

AUTHORIZATION AND DIRECTION TO THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST 
COMPANY, N.A. TO INVEST CASH BALANCES IN A MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUND 
THROUGH THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 

 
 
CUSTOMER NAME (the “Customer”): _Franklin County, Missouri____________________________________ 

 
GOVERNING AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”): Second Supplemental Declaration of Trust dated September 1, 

2019  Certificates of Participation  (Franklin County, Missouri, Lessee) Series 2019A and 2019B ________________ 
 
ACCOUNT (the “Account”): All accounts related to the Series 2019A and 2019B Certificates of Participation for 

Franklin County, MO__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ACCOUNT NUMBER (assigned by BNYM): 117652, 618040, 618058, 618059 and 618060____________________ 

 
NAME OF FUND (the “Fund”) AND SHARE CLASS: Dreyfus Treasury and Agency Cash Management - 

Administrative__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
This Authorization and Direction supersedes any previous instructions which pertain to the investment of cash in the 
Account. 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND DIRECTION 

 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (“BNYMNA”), acting through its affiliate The Bank of New York 
Mellon (“BNYM”), is hereby authorized and directed to invest any available cash in the Account in shares of the Fund 

and to redeem shares of the Fund to meet the cash requirements of the Account.  Customer may, from time to time, 
direct BNYMNA in writing to redeem and exchange shares of the Fund for shares of, or to invest available cash or the 
proceeds from any redemption in, another eligible investment and BNYMNA shall comply with such direction.  
Customer represents and warrants to BNYMNA that it is authorized and empowered to direct BNYMNA to make the 
investment specified herein and that the investment authorized herein is an authorized investment. 
 
PROSPECTUS:  Customer has read the Prospectus of the Fund and has independently made the determination to 

direct BNYMNA to invest available cash in the Account in shares of such Fund.  Customer understands that the Fund 
is not an obligation of, or recommended, endorsed or guaranteed in any way by, BNYMNA, its affiliates or any other 
bank; that such Fund is not insured by an agency or instrumentality of the United States, such as the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation; and that investments in the Fund may be subject to investment risks, including possible loss 
of the principal amount invested.   
 
AFFILIATED FUNDS: Unless Customer expressly directs BNYMNA to invest cash in other than a BNYM Sponsored 

Fund (as defined below), Customer understands that the Fund, and each other fund made available for investment 
hereunder, is either a Dreyfus Fund or is advised by an affiliate of BNYM (collectively, the “BNYM Sponsored 
Funds”), and that BNYM and/or its affiliates provide investment advisory, custodian, fund accounting, transfer agent, 

administrative and/or other services (see “Receipt of Fees by BNYM/Resulting Conflicts of Interest” below) to the 
BNYM Sponsored Funds, and are compensated for such services. 
 
PERIODIC STATEMENTS:  Although the Customer recognizes that it may obtain a broker confirmation or written 

statement containing comparable information at no additional cost, the Customer hereby agrees that transactions in 
the Fund will be reported only in BNYM’s regular periodic account statements. 
 
VOTING SHARES:  Customer assumes the obligation and retains the right to vote all shares of the Fund held 

hereunder for the benefit of the Account. 
 
RECEIPT OF FEES BY BNYM/RESULTING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:  Customer acknowledges that BNYM 

performs certain shareholder support services for the Fund and is currently compensated, and hereby consents to 
such compensation, for such services to the Fund, the Fund’s adviser and/or the Fund's distributor at an annual rate 
as described in the Prospectus of the Fund. BNYM may share all or a portion of the shareholder support service fees 
with BNYMNA.  Such shareholder support services may include, without limitation, answering client inquiries 
regarding the Fund, processing dividend payments for the Fund and providing assistance to a client in changing 
dividend options, account designations and addresses, aggregating and processing purchase and redemption 
transactions, providing periodic statements showing client account balances and purchases, sales and positions in 
the Fund, arranging for BNYM wires, providing sub-accounting services to the Fund for shares held by BNYM clients 
and forwarding communications from the Fund to BNYM clients and such other information and services as the Fund, 



the Fund’s distributor or Customer reasonably may request. Customer further acknowledges that BNYM may provide 
custodian, fund accounting, transfer agent, administrative and other services to the Fund for which it is compensated. 
 
Generally speaking, and subject to change from time to time by BNYMNA, BNYMNA makes available three share 
classes of the various funds that are made available for directed investment; the Institutional Class, the Administrative 
Class, and the Service Class, with approximate expense ratios of between 16 and 20, 27 and 33, and 42 and 46 
basis points, respectively. The names of the share classes will vary based on the naming convention of the fund 
complex and in each instance the expense ratio of the share class is set forth in the Prospectus. Customer 
acknowledges that (i) BNYMNA chooses, at its discretion, the share classes to make available to a given Customer 
based on a number of factors, (ii) there are other registered investment companies, and share classes, that would 
generally be available for directed investment in a program such as this, including funds for which BNYM and its 
affiliates do not provide services and receive fees, and which may have better performance and/or lower 
expenses/expense ratios, but they are not available for selection under this program, (iii) generally speaking, share 
classes with higher expenses/expense ratios (which cost Customer money in terms of reduced yield) pay BNYM a 
greater shareholder services fee than share classes with lower expenses/expense ratios, (iv) the expense ratios 
applied to the share class(es) of the selected Fund are not limited to the ranges set forth earlier and may be 
increased above or reduced below those ranges from time to time, and (v) as a result, BNYMNA has a conflict of 
interest with respect to the share classes that it makes available to Customer.   
 
Customer further acknowledges that BNYM has a further conflict of interest in that the Fund may purchase securities 
from or through BNYM or its affiliates, may engage in repurchase transactions with BNYM or its affiliates, may place 
funds on deposit in accounts with BNYM or its affiliates and receive interest income thereon and may obtain other 
services from BNYM for which BNYM is paid a fee. 
 
The annual rate for the shareholder support services fees paid to BNYM by the Fund may change in the future.  To 
obtain any future revised shareholder support service fee rate paid to BNYM, Customer should contact the BNYMNA 
officer responsible for the Account. 
 
CUSTOMER REPRESENTATIONS, CONFIRMATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:  The Customer represents 

and warrants to BNYMNA and BNYM that (i) it is capable of evaluating investment risks independently, both in 
general and with regard to particular transactions and investment strategies; (ii) it has made its own investment 
decision to invest available cash in the Account in shares of the Fund; (iii) it had the opportunity to consider 
alternative investments and consider the impact of the share class, and expenses/expense ratio of such share class, 
of the Fund offered to Customer; and (iv) it neither sought nor obtained advice from either BNYMNA, BNYM or their 
representatives regarding the investment in the Fund or any other investment product that may be offered by 
BNYMNA or BNYM.  Customer also confirms, represents and warrants that BNYMNA, BNYM and their 
representatives have not recommended or endorsed the Fund or required Customer to invest available cash in the 
Account in shares of the Fund.  Customer acknowledges that (i) it has the right to direct BNYMNA to invest cash in a 
different investment option selected by Customer from time to time, subject to operational and legal requirements 
related to such investment option and (ii) the list of money market mutual funds provided by BNYMNA is in 
connection with an arm’s length sale, purchase, exchange or other transaction related to the investment in securities. 
 
This Authorization and Direction is executed, acknowledged and consented to by:  
 
 
Franklin County, Missouri 
 
 
By: __________________________________  
Name: Tim Brinker 
 
Title: __________________________________ 
 
Date: __________________________________ 



Commission Order No.  2019-389 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-389 Page 1 

ss. 

 
IN THE MATTER OF  
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION  
OF A DIRECT BILL APPLICATION  
WITH OASIS HOTEL & CONVENTION CENTER 
 
WHEREAS, from time to time Franklin County employees attend conferences in Springfield, Missouri, and 
requires hotel accommodations; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to make hotel reservations and receive a direct bill for accommodations it is necessary 
that a Direct Bill Application for Oasis Hotel and Convention Center is completed.  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Direct Bill Application for Oasis Hotel and Convention Center in 
Springfield, Missouri, is hereby approved and the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all 
necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, for and on 
behalf of and as the act and deed of the County. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a completed copy of said application and this Order shall be provided to 
Oasis Hotel and Convention Center; Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Department; Lynne Maloney, Accounts 
Payable; and Karen Haley, Child Support Division. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 





Commission Order No. 2019-390 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Appointments 
 

Commission Order 2019-390 Page 1 

ss. 

 
IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTMENT 
TO THE FRANKLIN COUNTY 
COMMUNITY RESOURCE BOARD (FCCRB) 
 
 
WHEREAS, due to a resignation of a board member on the Franklin County Community Resource Board 
(FCCRB) it is necessary to appoint a new member to fill the vacancy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FCCRB has voted and affirmed to appoint James Haynes, 227 Howards Road, Robertsville, 
MO 63072, to serve on the Board to fill the remaining term until December 31, 2019;  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that James Haynes is appointed to the 
Franklin County Community Resource Board (FCCRB) to fill the current vacancy for a term ending December 
31, 2019. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this order be delivered to the appointed member and to Annie 
Foncannon, Executive Director Franklin County Community Resource Board, P.O. Box 126, Union, Missouri 
63084. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 



Commission Order No. 2019-391 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Taxes-Property 
 

Updated: 8/21/2019 11:24 am by Jeannine Stevens Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF FIXING THE 
PROPERTY TAX RATES OF THE 
COUNTY OF FRANKLIN FOR THE 
YEAR 2019 
 
WHEREAS, after publication of Notice of Public Hearing as required by Section 137.055 RSMo in the Washington 
Missourian edition of September 4, 2019 a public hearing was held at 9:45 a.m. Tuesday, September 10, 2019 in the 
Franklin County Commission Chambers, Room 206, 2nd floor, County Government Center, Union, Missouri at which 
time the citizens were heard on the tentative property tax rates proposed to be set for the year 2019 by the Franklin County 
Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the rates will produce substantially the same revenues as required by the budget for the fiscal year beginning 
January 1, 2019 for Franklin County, Missouri as follows:    
 
     Amount of Property  Tax Rate for 2019 
     Tax Revenue to be         (per $100) 
     Produced for 2019 
 
General Fund    $   2,603,258   $ .1273 
 
Road & Bridge Fund   $   4,298,545   $ .2102 
 
SB40 Resource Board   $   1,993,854   $ .0975  
 
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the property tax rate for General Fund for 2019 
will be .1273 per one hundred dollars assessed valuation, the property tax rate for Road & Bridge Fund for 2019 will be 
.2102 per one hundred dollars assessed valuation and the property tax rate for SB40 Resource Board for 2019 will be 
.0975 per one hundred dollars assessed valuation. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the property tax rates established for 2019 are subject to change based upon increases 
or decreases in the final assessed valuation and the state auditor's approval. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to Tim Baker, County Clerk. 
 
         ______________________________________ 
         Presiding Commissioner 
 
         ______________________________________ 
         Commissioner of First District 
 
         ______________________________________ 
         Commissioner of Second District 
 



Commission Order No.  2019-392 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-392 Page 1 

ss. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF FRANKLIN COUNTY  
ADOPTING THE ST. LOUIS REGIONAL  
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, Franklin County recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people and property within the 
County; and 
WHEREAS, Franklin County has participated in the preparation of a multi- hazard mitigation plan, hereby 
known as the St. Louis Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan, hereafter referred to as the Plan, in accordance with 
the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000; and 
WHEREAS, the Plan identifies mitigation goals and actions to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people 
and property in Franklin County from the impacts of future hazards and disasters; and 
WHEREAS, Franklin County recognizes that land use policies have a major impact on whether people and 
property are exposed to natural hazards, Franklin County will endeavor to integrate the Plan into the 
comprehensive planning process; and 

 
WHEREAS, adoption by Franklin County demonstrates their commitment to hazard mitigation and achieving 
the goals outlined in the Plan. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY FRANKLIN COUNTY in the State of Missouri, that Franklin County 
adopts the final FEMA-approved plan. 

 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Abe Cook, EMA provide a copy of said Resolution to East-West Gateway 
Council of Governments; and FEMA. 

 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 



Commission Order No. 2019-393 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Trustee’s Sale / Taxes 
 

Commission Order 2019-393 Page 1 

ss. 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING AN 
OFFER TO PURCHASE CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY FROM FRANKLIN COUNTY 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 
TRUSTEE’S DEED IN ORDER TO  
CONVEY SUCH PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, by virtue of a tax sale Franklin County acquired title to lot 12-7-35.0-3-008-178.000, Lot 74, Block 
8 of Whispering Valley 8 St. Anthony Drive, New Haven, MO 63068; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total amount of taxes, interest and fees charged against said parcels is $623.23; and 
 
WHEREAS, Alexander Eaton expressed an interest in acquiring the properties from Franklin County for a 
portion of the taxes and fees charged against the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Franklin County Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of Franklin County to 
convey such property to Alexander Eaton for the amount offered. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the offers of Alexander Eaton to 
purchase the subject properties for the sum of $150.00, said sum consisting of back taxes, interests and costs 
of $93.34 and Trustee’s Commission of $56.66. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Donald Wurdack, Trustee, is authorized to execute such documents as may 
be necessary to effectuate the transfer. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that it shall be the responsibility of Alexander Eaton to file the original deeds with 
the office of the County Recorder of Deeds. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to the following: 
 
   1. Donald Wurdack, Trustee 
   2. Tom Copeland, Assessor 
   3. Doug Trentmann, Collector 
   4. Jennifer Metcalf, Recorder of Deeds 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 







Commission Order No. 2019-394 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Trustee’s Sale / Taxes 
 

Commission Order 2019-394 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING AN 
OFFER TO PURCHASE CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY FROM FRANKLIN COUNTY 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 
TRUSTEE’S DEED IN ORDER TO  
CONVEY SUCH PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, by virtue of a tax sale Franklin County acquired title to lots:  
 12-7-35-0-4-006-040-000 38 Whispering Valley 6RS Hickory Lane New Haven, MO 63068 
 12-7-35-0-4-006-041-000 30 Whispering Valley 6RS Hickory Lane New Haven, MO 63068 
 12-7-35-0-4-006-042-000 31 Whispering Valley 6RS Hickory Lane New Haven, MO 63068 
; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total amount of taxes, interest and fees charged against said parcels is $1792.62; and 
 
WHEREAS, Guy L. Lee and Kathleen S. Lee expressed an interest in acquiring the properties from Franklin 
County for a portion of the taxes and fees charged against the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Franklin County Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of Franklin County to 
convey such property to Guy L. Lee and Kathleen S. Lee for the amount offered. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the offers of Guy L. Lee and Kathleen 
S. Lee to purchase the subject properties for the sum of $450.00, said sum consisting of back taxes, interests 
and costs of $287.04 and Trustee’s Commission of $162.96 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Donald Wurdack, Trustee, is authorized to execute such documents as may 
be necessary to effectuate the transfer. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that it shall be the responsibility of Guy L. Lee and Kathleen S. Lee to file the 
original deeds with the office of the County Recorder of Deeds. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to the following: 
 
   1. Donald Wurdack, Trustee 
   2. Tom Copeland, Assessor 
   3. Doug Trentmann, Collector 
   4. Jennifer Metcalf, Recorder of Deeds 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 







Commission Order No. 2019-395 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Trustee’s Sale / Taxes 
 

Commission Order 2019-395 Page 1 

ss. 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING AN 
OFFER TO PURCHASE CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY FROM FRANKLIN COUNTY 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 
TRUSTEE’S DEED IN ORDER TO  
CONVEY SUCH PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, by virtue of a tax sale Franklin County acquired title to lot 32-3-08-0-4-003-021.000 Lot 20 Block 
12 Lonedell Lakes 4 Lost Valley Rd. Lonedell, MO 63060; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total amount of taxes, interest and fees charged against said parcels is $473.63; and 
 
WHEREAS, Michael Lindsey expressed an interest in acquiring the properties from Franklin County for a 
portion of the taxes and fees charged against the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Franklin County Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of Franklin County to 
convey such property to Michael Lindsey for the amount offered. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the offers of Michael Lindsey to 
purchase the subject properties for the sum of $350.00, said sum consisting of back taxes, interests and costs 
of $306.94 and Trustee’s Commission of $43.06. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Donald Wurdack, Trustee, is authorized to execute such documents as may 
be necessary to effectuate the transfer. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that it shall be the responsibility of Michael Lindsey to file the original deeds with 
the office of the County Recorder of Deeds. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to the following: 
 
   1. Donald Wurdack, Trustee 
   2. Tom Copeland, Assessor 
   3. Doug Trentmann, Collector 
   4. Jennifer Metcalf, Recorder of Deeds 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 







Commission Order No. 2019-396 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Contracts / Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-396 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING A  
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SUB-AWARD  
AGREEMENT WITH EAST-WEST GATEWAY 
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR THE  
BENEFIT OF THE FRANKLIN COUNTY  
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FOR  
EMERGENCY RESPONSE EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 
  
WHEREAS, the East-West Gateway Council of Goverments has awarded a Financial Assistance Sub-Award ("Sub-Award") 
to Franklin County, Missouri (the “County”) in the amount of $37,100.00; and  

WHEREAS the Sub-Award will supply Franklin County with equipment and supplies from the 2017 UASI grant program to 
support emergency response in the St. Louis Urban Area; and  

WHEREAS, Franklin County desires to accept the Sub-Award from East-West Gateway Council of Governments.  

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by the County Commission of Franklin County that the County does hereby accept the Sub-
Award from East-West Gateway Council of Governments for supplies and equipment valued at $37,100.00. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Presiding Commissioner is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Financial 
Assistance Sup-Award Agreement by and between East-West Gateway Council of Governments and the County, a copy 
of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, for and on behalf of 
and as the act and deed of the County. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County are hereby authorized 
and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as 
may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order. 
 
IT S FURTHER ORDERED, that a copy of this Order and a fully executed copy of the Agreement be provided to the East-
West Gateway; to Abe Cook, Franklin County Emergency Management Director; Ann Struttmann, Purchasing 
Department; and Christa Buchanan, County Clerk’s Office. 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 



EAST-WEST GATEWAY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SUB-AWARD AGREEMENT

(a) Grant # 49887-EQSUPP

(i) Start Date 08/08/2019

2.  Sub-Recipient Information

1.  Sub-Award Information

(c) Project Description Franklin County, Missouri will receive equipment and supplies from the 2017 UASI grant program to support emergency response in the St. Louis Urban Area.

5.  The sub-recipient listed in Part #2 agrees to administer the Sub-Award in accordance with:

(a) All applicable federal and state regulations and grant guidelines, including but not limited to:

Describe: MoOHS Guidelines

(b) Each of the following Appendices:

Appendix I:  Sub-Recipient General Terms & Conditions; Appendix II:  Federal Award Information; Appendix III:  Equipment & Supplies List; and Appendix IV:  MoOHS Subaward Agreement (only 
to the extent described in Appendix I, Paragraph 15, Part (a)(ii)).

6.  The assistance described in this Sub-Award is hereby offered and accepted effective upon the signature of each parties' duly 
authorized official and on the first date indicated in Part #1(d) above.

Franklin County, Missouri

DateName & Title Tim Brinker, Presiding Commissioner

Name & Title James M. Wild, Executive Director Date

2 CFR Part 200✔

Signature

Signature

(a) Name Franklin County, Missouri

(i) Name Abe Cook

(c) DUNS # 807100602

(d) Sub-Award Performance Period

East-West Gateway Council of Governments

Other✔

(b) Project Name 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies

(f) Is this a research and development (R&D) award? Yes No✔ (g) Indirect costs allowed?

(b) Address 400 East Locust, Union, MO 63084

(d) Point of Contact (ii) Phone 636-583-1679 (iii) Email acook@franklinmo.net

3.  EWG Point of Contact Information

(a) Name Leah Watkins (c) Email leah.watkins@ewgateway.org(b) Phone 314-421-4220

Yes No✔

(e) Total Sub-Award Amount (Grant + Match)  $37,100.00 *See Section 4 for information about funding sources.

4.  Funding Source Information

(c) CFDA Information(b) Awarding Agency Name(s)

97.067 - Homeland Security Grant Program (2017)

(d) $ Amt. 

(ii) End Date 08/31/2020

 $37,100.00 U.S. DHS, FEMA through MO Office of Homeland Security

(a) Funding Type

Federal grant

 $37,100.00 (e) Total Sub-Award Amount (Grant + Match)

Yes✔ No(f) Does this Sub-Award include the provision of equipment or supplies?

The total sub-award amount described in Section 4, Part (e) includes the value of the equipment and supplies that are described in Appendix III:  Equipment & Supplies List (Appendix III).

*See Appendix II:  Federal Award Information for information about each federal grant described in Section 4.



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 1 of 29 

Appendix I: 
Sub-Recipient General Terms & Conditions 

The following terms apply to the Financial Assistance Sub-Award Agreement (“Sub-Award”) entered into 
by Franklin County, Missouri (“Sub-Recipient”) and East-West Gateway Council of Governments (the 
“Council”) (together the “Parties”).   

1. Definitions, Contents of the Agreement & Order of Precedence.   

a. Definitions.  As used in this Appendix I: Sub-Recipient General Terms & Conditions, the 
terms and acronyms described in Paragraph 1, Parts (a)(i) – (xiii) have the meanings 
provided below.   

i. Agreement means the Sub-Award and the appendices listed in Paragraph 1, Part 
(b). 

ii. CFR means the Code of Federal Regulations. 

iii. DHS means the U.S. Department of Homeland Security. 

iv. Disposition means transferring ownership of any GFES to a different entity, 
selling GFES to a different entity or person, recycling, throwing-away, or using 
another method of discarding the GFES, or using other disposal methods 
whereby Sub-Recipient is no longer the owner of the GFES; except that, moving 
the GFES from one location to another while retaining ownership of the item 
does not constitute a Disposition. 

v. Emergency means a potential or actual mass casualty incident, man-made or 
natural disaster, or criminal terrorist incident. 

vi. Equipment means tangible personal property (including information technology 
systems) having a useful life of more than one (1) year and a per-unit acquisition 
cost that equals or exceeds one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) that is purchased 
using grant funds and transferred to Sub-Recipient under the terms of the 
Agreement. 

vii. FEMA means the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

viii. Grant-Funded Equipment and Supplies (“GFES”) means any one or combination 
of Equipment or Supply(ies). 

ix. MoOHS means the Missouri Office of Homeland Security. 

x. Omni Circular means the federal regulations found at 2 CFR Part 200 – Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards. 

xi. Project Site(s) mean(s) the specific location(s) at the physical address(es) 
described in Paragraph 3 or in Appendix III where the GFES will be located or 
where the project work described in Paragraph 3 will be implemented or 
conducted. 

xii. Supply(ies) mean(s) any tangible personal property that does not meet the 
definition of Equipment that is/are purchased using grant funds and transferred 
to Sub-Recipient under the terms of the Agreement; however, any computing 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 2 of 29 

device that has a per-unit acquisition cost of less than one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) is a supply regardless of the length of its useful life. 

xiii. Urban Area means the St. Louis Urban Area that includes the bi-state, eight 
county St. Louis metropolitan area served by the Council that includes:  city of 
St. Louis, Missouri and Franklin, Jefferson, St. Charles, and St. Louis counties in 
Missouri and Madison, Monroe, and St. Clair counties in Illinois. 

b. Contents of the Agreement.  The Sub-Award consists of the terms expressed in the East-
West Gateway Council of Governments Financial Assistance Sub-Award Agreement and 
the Appendices listed in Paragraph 1, Part (b)(i) – (iv) (together the “Agreement”).  The 
Appendices are each made a part of the Sub-Award and are incorporated by reference 
into the Sub-Award as though fully set forth in the Sub-Award.  Sub-Recipient’s failure to 
adhere to the terms expressed in the Appendices may constitute a material breach of 
the Agreement, and the Council may take appropriate action against Sub-Recipient to 
ensure compliance with these provisions, as described in Paragraph 11, Part (b). 

i. Appendix I: Sub-Recipient General Terms & Conditions (“Appendix I”). 

ii. Appendix II:  Federal Grant Award Information (“Appendix II”). 

iii. Appendix III: Equipment & Supplies List (“Appendix III”). 

iv. Appendix IV:  Office of Homeland Security, Sub-Award Agreement (“Appendix 
IV”), which is incorporated into the Sub-Award only to the extent described in 
Paragraph 15, Part (a)(ii). 

c. Order of Precedence.  In the event that any conflict or inconsistency arises among the 
provisions of the Sub-Award and the provisions of the Appendices, the documents shall 
have the following order of precedence: 

i. Appendix I. 

ii. Sub-Award. 

iii. Appendix IV. 

iv. Appendix II. 

v. Appendix III. 

2. Performance Period.   

a. Except as described in Paragraph 2, Part (b), the performance period for the Agreement 
is the term described in the Sub-Award, Section 1, Part (d), unless:   

i.  the performance period is extended through mutual agreement of the Parties 
and the extension is requested and approved in accordance with Paragraph 10, 
or  

ii. the Agreement is terminated.  

  



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 3 of 29 

b. Except as described in Paragraph 4, Part (n)(ii)(4), with respect to any Equipment, the 
requirements described in Paragraph 4 and Paragraph 8, Parts (a) and (b) will survive 
the expiration of the performance period described in Paragraph 2, Part (a) or the 
termination of the Agreement and will remain in effect until the later occurrence of: (i) 
five (5) years after the date on which Sub-Recipient takes possession of the item; or (ii) 
until the fair market value of the item is zero (0). 

3. Project Description & Scope of Work.   

a. Project Description.  The project governed by the Agreement includes:  (i) the scope of 
work described in Paragraph 3, Part (b), and (ii) the GFES described in Appendix III that 
will be used to enhance Sub-Recipient’s ability to respond an Emergency in the Urban 
Area.     

b. Scope of Work.  Sub-Recipient shall perform the work described in Paragraph 3, Part 
(b)(i).  Sub-Recipient shall perform the work described in Paragraph 3, Part (b)(i) in a 
professional and technical manner, consistent with lawful procedures and standards 
that govern persons performing similar work, and in compliance with applicable local, 
state, and federal laws.   

i. The only work anticipated by the Agreement is the work Sub-Recipient must 
perform in order to meet the requirements described in Paragraph 4 and 
Paragraph 15, Part (a)(iii). 

4. Equipment & Supplies.  As part of the project, Sub-Recipient will receive the GFES from the 
Council.  Sub-Recipient must adhere to the requirements described in Paragraph 4 for any and 
all GFES.  The requirements described in Paragraph 4 are subject to the term described in 
Paragraph 2, Part (b) and will survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement. 

a. Appendix III Updates.  As needed during the performance period, the Council will send 
Sub-Recipient an updated Appendix III.  If the Council purchases for and transfers to 
Sub-Recipient any GFES that is not described in Appendix III on the date that the 
Agreement is executed, then the Council shall, at a minimum, send Sub-Recipient an 
updated Appendix III during project close-out. Upon request by Sub-Recipient, the 
Council will submit an updated Appendix III to the Sub-Recipient prior to project close-
out; however, the Council is not obligated to submit an updated Appendix III to Sub-
Recipient more than once per calendar year. 

b. Inspection.  Upon receipt of any GFES, Sub-Recipient must visually inspect the items to 
ensure that each are in good working order, free from defects or malfunctions, and are 
of the quantity and type ordered.  After completing its inspection and no later than 
fourteen (14) calendar days after Sub-Recipient receives the GFES, Sub-Recipient must 
complete, sign, and submit to the Council an Inventory Control Form (“ICF”).  If the GFES 
are found to be defective in any way or the type or quantity are incorrect, Sub-Recipient 
must immediately notify the Council’s point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part 
(a)(i)(1).  The ICF and supporting documentation must be submitted to the Council’s 
point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(1).   

c. Ownership.  Sub-Recipient shall receive and take ownership of the GFES that are 
described in Appendix III, as it may be updated from time-to-time during the 
performance period.  Ownership shall transfer to Sub-Recipient upon Sub-Recipient’s 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 4 of 29 

receipt of the GFES.  Sub-Recipient shall remain responsible for the GFES and shall 
comply with all of the provisions in the Agreement.  Sub-Recipient shall follow the 
procedures described in Paragraph 4, Part (n) of the Agreement prior to transferring, 
selling, or otherwise disposing of any GFES that are described in Appendix III. 

d. Use.  Sub-Recipient’s use of the GFES is limited the circumstances described in 
Paragraph 4, Parts (d)(i) – (iv). 

i. Sub-Recipient must use the GFES for the program or project for which the 
Council purchased the GFES as long as the GFES are needed for that program or 
project and regardless of whether or not the project or program continues to be 
supported by the federal government.   

ii. During the time that the GFES are used for the project or program for which it 
was acquired, Sub-Recipient must also make the GFES available for use on other 
projects or programs currently or previously supported by the federal 
government provided that this use will not interfere with the work on the 
project or program for which they were originally acquired.  First preference for 
other use must be given to other projects or programs supported by MoOHS 
and second preference must be given to other federally supported projects or 
programs.   

iii. Sub-Recipient must also make deployable GFES available to respond to an 
Emergency.  During an Emergency, the Council, MoOHS, the Missouri State 
Emergency Management Agency, DHS, FEMA, or an emergency response agency 
in the Urban Area may request that Sub-Recipient provide the deployable GFES 
to respond to the Emergency.  If Sub-Recipient receives this type of request, 
Sub-Recipient shall cooperate with the requesting entity to fulfill the request 
and shall either convey any deployable GFES to the agreed upon staging location 
or otherwise make the deployable GFES available for use during the Emergency.  
Nothing in this Paragraph 4, Part (d)(iii) will be deemed to require Sub-Recipient 
to provide any non-deployable GFES or to provide the deployable GFES to a 
requesting entity if Sub-Recipient is using the deployable GFES to respond to an 
Emergency in the Urban Area.  This Paragraph 4, Part (d)(iii) will not be deemed 
to supersede an existing mutual aid or similar agreement that Sub-Recipient has 
in place with other entities for Emergency response.     

iv. In accordance with the Omni Circular § 200.313, Sub-Recipient may also use the 
GFES to support non-Federally supported projects or programs and may 
consider user fees, as appropriate. 

e. Care.  Sub-Recipient must take reasonable care of the GFES and take active steps to 
protect it from loss, theft, damage, or destruction.  Sub-Recipient must also take 
reasonable steps to identify and dispose of any expired Supplies.  In the event of the 
loss, theft, damage, or destruction of any Equipment or the expiration of any Supplies, 
Sub-Recipient must follow the steps described in Paragraph 4, Part (f) to document the 
loss, theft, damage, or destruction of any GFES or the steps described in Paragraph 4, 
Part (n) to dispose of any expired Supplies.  Sub-Recipient shall be fully responsible to   



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 5 of 29 

repair or replace any GFES that is lost, stolen, damaged, or destroyed due to the willful 
or negligent acts of Sub-Recipient and any repaired or replacement Equipment or 
Supplies will be governed by the Agreement to the same extent that the original GFES 
were governed. 

f. Loss, Theft, Damage, or Destruction.  In the event that any GFES is lost, stolen, damaged, 
or destroyed, Sub-Recipient must: 

i. promptly and properly investigate and fully document the loss, theft, damage, 
or destruction, 

ii. provide a copy of the investigative report and other documentation to the 
Council’s point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2), 

iii. retain a copy of the investigative report and other documentation in Sub-
Recipient’s project records, 

iv. if the GFES was lost, stolen, damaged, or destroyed due to the willful or 
negligent acts of Sub-Recipient, take steps to replace or repair the GFES, and 

v. within fourteen (14) calendar days of completing its investigation, complete, 
sign, and submit an Inventory Removal/Transfer Form (“IRTF”) to the Council’s 
point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(1).  

g. Maintenance.  Sub-Recipient must maintain all GFES in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s guidance, the Sub-Recipient’s standard operating procedures and 
guidelines, and accepted practices.  At a minimum, Sub-Recipient must maintain the 
GFES so that each are in mission-ready condition.  Sub-Recipient shall be responsible for 
the costs associated with maintaining any GFES and the cost of routine upkeep for 
Equipment (e.g. gasoline, tire replacement, oil changes, inspections) are not costs that 
are eligible for reimbursement from any of the Council’s grant programs.  Upon the 
Council’s request, Sub-Recipient must submit maintenance logs for any Equipment that 
requires regular maintenance (e.g. vehicles, trailers, generators). 

h. Training.  Sub-Recipient shall provide training to its personnel, as needed, in the proper 
and safe use of any GFES. 

i. Inventory. Sub-Recipient is responsible for maintaining an up-to-date inventory of and 
preparing/submitting reports for all GFES.   

i. Inventory Management System.  Sub-Recipient must establish and utilize a 
proper inventory management system that allows Sub-Recipient to track and 
account for any GFES.  If Sub-Recipient has an existing inventory management 
system, then Sub-Recipient may continue to use that system provided that the 
system allows Sub-Recipient to capture and track each of the items of 
information described in the MoOHS Administrative Guide for Homeland 
Security Grants (“Administrative Guide”), section “Inventory,” as it may be 
updated from time-to-time.  A current edition of the Administrative Guide can 
be found online at:  https://dps.mo.gov/dir/programs/ohs/grantstraining/.  

ii. Inventory Tags.  As part of its inventory practice, Sub-Recipient must tag each 
piece of Equipment.  Sub-Recipient may choose the method and type of tagging 
(e.g. barcode tags, numbered labels) provided that the tag includes a number 

https://dps.mo.gov/dir/programs/ohs/grantstraining/


 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 6 of 29 

that can be used to identify and locate the Equipment.  Sub-Recipient must 
include these tag numbers on the ICF that is submitted to the Council pursuant 
to Paragraph 4, Part (b). 

iii. Equipment Decals.  The Council will provide Sub-Recipient with funding-source 
decals that must be attached to any vehicles, trailers, generators, or other 
mobile assets that are identified by the Council.  Sub-Recipient is responsible for 
ensuring that the decals are affixed to these types of Equipment and in a 
location that is easily visible by members of the public and during any on-site 
inventory. 

iv. On-site Inventories.  The Council may elect to conduct on-site inventories of the 
GFES.  The Council, to the extent possible and practicable, will notify Sub-
Recipient of the Council’s intent to conduct an on-site inventory and will work 
with Sub-Recipient to schedule a mutually convenient time and date for an on-
site inventory.  Sub-Recipient shall cooperate with the Council in the Council’s 
effort to conduct an on-site inventory and shall make its personnel and facilities 
available to the Council to conduct an on-site inventory. 

v. Inventory Reports.  Sub-Recipient must submit inventory reports as described 
in Paragraph 8, Part (a). 

j. Insurance.  Sub-Recipient must insure any Equipment in accordance with the 
requirements described in Paragraph 7, Part (b).  Sub-Recipient shall submit proof of 
insurance coverage in accordance with Paragraph 7, Part (b)(iii). 

k. Title and Registration.  Sub-Recipient must ensure that any vehicle, trailer, or similar 
Equipment is properly titled and registered with the appropriate state agency and in 
accordance with the state’s requirements.  Sub-Recipient shall submit proof of title and 
registration no later than thirty (30) calendar days after titling and registering any 
vehicle, trailer, or similar Equipment.  Sub-Recipient must submit this proof to the 
Council’s point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(1).   

l. Location.  Sub-Recipient must notify the Council of the storage location Sub-Recipient 
has selected for the GFES and must notify the Council in writing about any permanent 
changes to the GFES’s storage location within fourteen (14) calendar days of the 
location change.  The notices required by this Paragraph 4, Part (l) must be submitted to 
the Council’s points of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Parts (a)(i)(1) and (3).  Sub-
Recipient may select the storage location for the GFES; however, the storage location 
must, at a minimum, be:   

i. accessible to Sub-Recipient or Sub-Recipient’s designee twenty-four (24) hours a 
day, seven (7) days a week, 

ii. secure enough to protect the GFES from loss or theft, and 

iii. within the Urban Area, unless the Council has provided its express written 
authorization for the GFES to be stored outside the Urban Area. 

m. Points of Contact.  Sub-Recipient must notify the Council’s points of contact designated 
in Paragraph 16, Parts (a)(i)(1) and (3) of Sub-Recipient’s primary and secondary points 
of contact that the Council or other officials may use to contact Sub-Recipient about the 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 7 of 29 

GFES. For both the primary and secondary points of contact, Sub-Recipient must provide 
the person’s:  (i) name; (ii) title; (iii) e-mail address; (iv) business mailing address; and (v) 
a phone number at which the point of contact can be reached twenty-four (24) hours a 
day / seven (7) days a week. 

n. Disposition and Obligation.  If Sub-Recipient determines that it wishes or needs to 
dispose of any GFES, then Sub-Recipient must adhere to the procedures and 
requirements described in Paragraph 4, Parts (n)(i) and (ii).  Sub-Recipient’s obligation to 
the Council for a Disposition is described in Paragraph 4, Part (n)(ii).  Sub-Recipient’s 
failure to adhere to the requirements described in Paragraph 4, Parts (n)(i) may be 
deemed a material breach of the Agreement and the Council may undertake any one or 
combination of actions described in Paragraph 11, Part (b).   

i. Disposition.  Sub-Recipient is not permitted to undertake a Disposition without 
first obtaining the Council’s prior written authorization.  To obtain the Council’s 
prior written authorization, Sub-Recipient must complete, sign, and submit an 
IRTF to the Council’s point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(1).  
The Council will determine if the GFES is eligible for Disposition, based upon the 
criteria described in Paragraph 4, Part (n)(i)(1), and will notify Sub-Recipient in 
writing if, and to what extent, the Disposition is approved.    

1. GFES are eligible for Disposition if the item meets any one or 
combination of the following criteria: 

a. Is no longer needed for the project or program for which it was 
originally acquired and it is not needed for any other DHS 
project or program. 

b. Is expired, defined as past the item’s useful shelf life.  

c. Is obsolete, defined as no longer in use or no longer capable of 
being used due to changes in methods, procedures, or 
technology. 

d. Was consumed during training, an exercise, a deployment, 
Emergency response, or similar activities. 

e. The term described in Paragraph 2, Part (b) has expired. 

ii. Obligation.  Once Sub-Recipient obtains the Council’s prior written 
authorization for a Disposition, Sub-Recipient’s obligations to the Council are as 
follows: 

1. For Equipment with a per item fair market value of less than $5,000, 
Sub-Recipient may dispose of the item without further obligation to the 
Council.   

2. For Equipment with a per item fair market value of more than $5,000, 
Sub-Recipient may dispose of the item; however, the Council shall have 
a right to the fair market value proceeds from the sale of the 
Equipment.  Sub-Recipient will return to the Council the fair market 
value proceeds from the sale of the Equipment and shall cooperate with 
the Council’s effort to obtain the fair market value proceeds from the 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 8 of 29 

sale.  The Council will notify Sub-Recipient about the deadline for 
returning the proceeds to the Council and the method and form that 
Sub-Recipient must use to return the proceeds to the Council.  Sub-
Recipient’s failure to adhere to the requirements described in this 
Paragraph 4, Part (n)(ii)(2) may be deemed a material breach of the 
Agreement and the Council may undertake any one or combination of 
actions described in Paragraph 11, Part (b).   

3. For Supplies, Sub-Recipient may dispose of the item without further 
obligation to the Council. 

4. Upon Sub-Recipient’s Disposition conducted in accordance with 
Paragraph 4, Part (n), the Equipment that is disposed of will be removed 
from Sub-Recipient’s inventory and Sub-Recipient will have no further 
obligation to track and report on disposed Equipment. 

5. Reimbursements / Payments.  The Agreement does not include the provision of grant funds to 
Sub-Recipient; therefore, the Council is not responsible for reimbursing Sub-Recipient for any 
costs associated with the project or the work described in Paragraph 3, Part (b). 

6. Personnel and Subcontracting & Purchases / Procurement. 

a. Personnel and Subcontracting. 

i. Sub-Recipient represents that it has, or will secure, all personnel required in 
performing the work described in Paragraph 3, Part (b).  Sub-Recipient shall 
either perform or supervise all of the required work.  Sub-Recipient is 
responsible for the satisfactory completion of all work, including work 
performed by Sub-Recipient’s subcontractors.   

ii. All of Sub-Recipient’s personnel, including subcontracted personnel, engaged in 
the work must be fully qualified and must be authorized or permitted under 
state and local law to perform the work described in Paragraph 3, Part (b).  Sub-
Recipient must comply with the E-Verify requirements described in the MoOHS 
Administrative Guide. 

iii. The Council is not an employer of any personnel hired by Sub-Recipient to 
perform the work described in Paragraph 3, Part (b).  Sub-Recipient is fully 
responsible for:   

1. paying any salaries, fringe benefits, unemployment insurance, or 
workers’ compensation,  

2.  ensuring that any local taxes, state taxes, and federal taxes are properly 
withheld from its personnel’s pay, and  

3. complying with local, state, and federal reporting requirements that 
govern compensation and taxation. 

  



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 9 of 29 

b. Purchases / Procurement.  

i. Definitions.  As used in Paragraph 6, Part (b), the terms described in Paragraph 
6, Parts (b)(i)(1) and (2) have the meanings provided below.   

1. “Purchase / procurement,” in addition to its common meaning, also 
means the hiring of any individual or firm to complete any services or to 
provide any goods.  The meaning of purchase / procurement does not 
include the hiring of employees to complete services under the 
Agreement.   

2. “Employees” has the same meaning described in Section 285.500 et seq. 
RSMo. 

ii. Sub-Recipient may not undertake the purchase / procurement of any services or 
any goods without the Council’s prior written approval.  If Sub-Recipient needs 
to undertake a purchase / procurement, Sub-Recipient must contact the 
Council’s designated point of contact in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2) and obtain 
the prior written approval.  The Council’s point of contact will direct Sub-
Recipient about the process that needs to be followed to purchase / procure 
goods or services and what documentation needs to be submitted to the 
Council, retained by Sub-Recipient, or both. 

iii. If the Council authorizes Sub-Recipient to undertake a purchase / procurement, 
then Sub-Recipient (including any authorized subcontractors) shall use federally 
compliant, competitive procurement procedures to purchase any services or 
goods under the Agreement.  These procedures are defined in the Omni 
Circular, specifically 2 CFR Part 200, Procurement Standards, §§ 200.317 – 
200.326, and MoOHS guidelines.  Sub-Recipient may use its own procurement 
procedures provided that those procedures are at least as restrictive as the 
procedures required by MoOHS guidelines. 

iv. All purchases / procurements, whether competitive or non-competitive, must 
be reviewed and approved by the Council in advance of the final selection and 
retention of a contractor or vendor to provide any services or goods for the 
project.  

v. Paragraph 6, Part (b) applies to purchases / procurement that are conducted by 
any one or combination of Sub-Recipient, Sub-Recipient’s designees, or Sub-
Recipient’s subcontractor.   

vi. Paragraph 6, Part (b) applies to Sub-Recipient purchases / procurement that are 
made with any type of purchasing method or mechanism. 

c. If Sub-Recipient fails to adhere to the requirements in Paragraph 6, then the Council 
may undertake any one or combination of the actions noted in Paragraph 11, Part (b).   

7. Liability & Insurance Coverage.  

a. Liability.  To the extent allowed or imposed by law, Sub-Recipient shall hold harmless 
the Council including its members and employees, from any claim, suit, liability, 
damage, loss, or cost (including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and litigation costs) 
arising out of or relating to the work performed under the Agreement or the storage or 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 10 of 29 

use of the GFES.  Sub-Recipient’s obligation under this Paragraph 7, Part (a) is limited to 
any claim, liability, damage, loss, or cost that is sustained by the Council or others for 
property damage, property destruction, or any bodily injury (including, but not limited 
to, death) and to the extent that the claim arises from or is caused by:  (i) Sub-
Recipient’s breach of or default in the Agreement, (ii) the negligence, errors, omissions, 
or willful misconduct of Sub-Recipient, Sub-Recipient’s employees, affiliated 
corporations, or subcontractors in connection with the work performed under the terms 
of the Agreement, or (iii) the storage or use of the GFES. 

b. Insurance Coverage.   

i. Property and Casualty Insurance.  Sub-Recipient shall carry property and 
casualty insurance coverage to protect any Equipment and this insurance must 
be of the same character and amount that Sub-Recipient carries to protect any 
of its own property (e.g. equipment, vehicles).  Sub-Recipient must obtain this 
insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance in Missouri (for entities 
formed under Missouri law) or Illinois (for entities formed under Illinois law) or 
must provide the insurance coverage through a self-insurance program. 

ii. Self-Insurance Program.  If Sub-Recipient is relying on a self-insurance program 
to provide the insurance coverage type and amount described in Paragraph 7, 
Part (b)(i), then Sub-Recipient’s proof of insurance must be demonstrated 
through a signed, written statement to the Council regarding the self-insurance 
program and certifying that the program meets the insurance requirements 
described in Paragraph 7, Part (b)(i). 

iii. Sub-Recipient shall submit proof of insurance coverage upon the Council’s 
written request, but, at a minimum, no later than sixty (60) calendar days after 
Sub-Recipient receives the Equipment and, thereafter, no later than October 
15th of each year during the term described in Paragraph 2, Part (b).  Sub-
Recipient must submit this proof of insurance to the Council’s point of contact 
designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(1).  Sub-Recipient shall also, upon written 
request, provide the Council written copies of its insurance policies. 

iv. Sub-Recipient shall notify the Council in writing within seven (7) calendar days 
of receiving notices that any of its, or its subcontractors’, insurance policies have 
been reduced, terminated, or cancelled (even in part) for any reason. 

c. In no event will the language of Paragraph 7 constitute or be construed as a waiver or 
limitation for either party’s rights or defenses with regard to each party’s applicable 
sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections as provided by federal 
or state constitution or by federal or state law.  

8. Required Reports. 

a. Inventory Reports.  If Sub-Recipient’s award includes Equipment, as described in 
Paragraph 3, Part (a), Sub-Recipient must update and return to the Council an inventory 
report in the form and format specified by the Council.  Sub-Recipient shall submit its 
inventory report no later than October 15th of each year during the term described in 
Paragraph 2, Part (b).  As part of its inventory reporting, Sub-Recipient is responsible for 
calculating and tracking the depreciation of the fair market value of each item of 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 11 of 29 

Equipment and will report this depreciation on Sub-Recipient’s inventory reports.  The 
method that Sub-Recipient uses to calculate the depreciation of the Equipment must be 
consistent with the method Sub-Recipient uses to calculate depreciation for the 
equipment that Sub-Recipient purchases.  With respect to any Equipment that was 
disposed of during the reporting period, Sub-Recipient must adhere to Paragraph 4, Part 
(n)(ii)(4) with respect to reporting on the disposed of items.  The inventory report must 
be submitted to the Council’s point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(1).  
Sub-Recipient’s failure to adhere to this reporting requirement may be deemed a 
material breach of the Agreement and the Council may undertake any one or 
combination of actions described in Paragraph 11, Part (b). 

b. Vehicle Mileage Logs.  If Sub-Recipient receives a vehicle under the terms of the 
Agreement, then Sub-Recipient must also maintain and submit vehicle mileage logs in 
the form and format specified by the Council.  Sub-Recipient shall submit its vehicle 
mileage logs no later than October 15th of each year during the term described in 
Paragraph 2, Part (b).  At a minimum, the vehicle mileage log must capture the 
information described in the Administrative Guide, “Vehicles, Usage Log” section, as it 
may be updated from time-to-time.  A current edition of the Administrative Guide can 
be found online at:  https://dps.mo.gov/dir/programs/ohs/grantstraining/.  The vehicle 
mileage logs must be submitted to the Council’s point of contact designated in 
Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(1).  Sub-Recipient’s failure to adhere to this reporting 
requirement may be deemed a material breach of the Agreement and the Council may 
undertake any one or combination of actions described in Paragraph 11, Part (b). 

c. Violations.  Sub-Recipient must report / disclose to the Council in writing all violations of 
federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity affecting the Agreement.  Sub-
Recipient’s written report / disclosure must be provided to the Council no later than 
fourteen (14) calendar days after Sub-Recipient is made aware of the violation.  Sub-
Recipient must submit this report to the Council’s point of contact designated in 
Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2). 

d. If Sub-Recipient fails to comply with the terms of Paragraph 8, then the Council may 
take action against Sub-Recipient as the actions are described in Paragraph 11, Part (b). 

9. Work Products, Disclosure & Publication Requirements. 

a. Work Products.  Except for the reports described in Paragraph 8, Sub-Recipient is not 
responsible for producing any work products or deliverables as part of the work 
described in Paragraph 3, Part (b). 

b. Disclosure.  Except as required by law, Sub-Recipient shall not disclose in any way, or 
permit to be disclosed in any way:  any information related to its work or the results of 
the work contemplated by the Agreement.  If Sub-Recipient wishes to disclose any of 
these or is required to disclose any of these, then it shall first notify the Council and, in 
the case of a disclosure that is not required by law, obtain the Council’s express written 
consent.  Sub-Recipient’s notification must be submitted to the Council’s point of 
contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2).  This Paragraph 9, Part (b) is applicable 
only to disclosure of project information and results to any person who or entity that is 
not a part of the project.  Members of the project team, the Council’s staff, or members 
of the committee overseeing the project will be considered “part of the project team.”       

https://dps.mo.gov/dir/programs/ohs/grantstraining/


 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 12 of 29 

c. Publication Requirements.  Sub-Recipient is not responsible for publishing any work 
products or other materials as part of the work described in Paragraph 3, Part (b).   

10. Authorized Personnel, Changes & Other Requests.  The Council has sole discretion to approve 
Sub-Recipient’s request for changes or provide approvals or authorizations and Paragraph 10 
does not obligate the Council to approve Sub-Recipient’s requests.  The persons who are 
authorized to initiate change requests, to approve Sub-Recipient’s requests for changes, or to 
provide authorizations are described in Paragraph 10, Part (a).  The process for requesting 
changes to the Agreement are described in Paragraph 10, Part (b) and the process for other 
types of requests are described in Paragraph 10, Part (c). 

a. Authorized Personnel.  The persons listed in Paragraph 10, Parts (a)(i) – (iii) are 
authorized by the Council to initiate change requests, to approve Sub-Recipient’s 
requests for changes, or to provide authorizations.   

i. The Council’s point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2).  

ii. The Council’s Executive Director. 

iii. Other person authorized in writing by the persons listed in Paragraph 10, Parts 
(a)(i) and (ii), when this other person is indicated in writing to Sub-Recipient as 
having this authority.   

Except for requests related to Dispositions described in Paragraph 4, Part (n), the 
Council’s project manager, the points of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part 
(a)(i)(1) or (3), or any other person not described in Paragraph 10, Parts (a)(i) – (iii) are 
not authorized to initiate change requests, to approve Sub-Recipient’s requests for 
changes, or provide authorizations. 

b. Changes.  Certain changes to the performance period, Appendix I, Appendix III, or other 
changes to the Agreement must be requested and approved as stated in Paragraph 10, 
Parts (b)(i) – (vi).  

i. Except as noted in Paragraph 10, Part (b)(iii), any Sub-Recipient request for 
changes must be submitted to the Council in advance of the change taking 
effect.  Changes include, but are not limited to:  changing the scope of work or 
lengthening or shortening the performance period.  The Council will consider 
Sub-Recipient’s after-the-fact changes on a limited basis and it is within the 
Council’s sole discretion whether to consider or approve Sub-Recipient’s after-
the-fact changes. 

ii. In order to request a change to the performance period or scope of work Sub-
Recipient shall submit to the Council’s point of contact designated in Paragraph 
16, Part (a)(i)(2), a written request that contains: 

1. a clear description of the change requested and a rationale/justification 
for why the change is necessary, 

2. the proposed effective date of the change, and 

3. a copy of the revised scope of work, if applicable.   

iii. Sub-Recipient must keep the Council’s points of contact designated in Paragraph 
16, Part (a)(i)(3) informed, in writing, about changes to the project schedule, 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 13 of 29 

including deliverable due dates.  If a change to the project schedule will result in 
Sub-Recipient not completing its work within the performance period specified 
in Paragraph 2, Part (a), then Sub-Recipient shall follow the procedures 
described in Paragraph 10, Part (b)(ii). 

iv. The Council will review Sub-Recipient’s change request and will send Sub-
Recipient a written notice of its decision and, if Sub-Recipient’s request is 
denied, will include an explanation of the Council’s decision. 

v. Except as noted in Paragraph 10, Parts (b)(vi)(1) and (2), any one or combination 
of the changes in listed in Paragraph 10, Parts (b)(v)(1) – (3) must be effected 
through written amendments to the Agreement, signed by the duly authorized 
representative of each party. 

1. Any change to the scope of work, except as noted in Paragraph 10, Part 
(b)(iii).  

2. Any change to the performance period. 

3. An increase in the total dollar amount sub-awarded to Sub-Recipient. 

vi. The Council may initiate changes to terms of the Agreement including, but not 
limited to, the performance period, the scope of work, or Appendix III to update 
the list of GFES.  Except as noted in Paragraph 10, Parts (b)(vi)(1) and (2), the 
Council shall obtain Sub-Recipient’s written assent to the change, either through 
a signed amendment or other written communication.  Regardless of whether 
the Council has issued a signed amendment to Sub-Recipient or Sub-Recipient 
has provided a written communication to Council regarding its assent to the 
change, Sub-Recipient’s assent to the change will be deemed given if, after the 
Council has communicated a change to Sub-Recipient, Sub-Recipient submits an 
invoice or other request for payment to the Council or Sub-Recipient accepts 
payment from the Council.   

1. Certain minor changes to the Agreement may be initiated by the Council 
and do not require prior authorization or a written amendment to the 
Agreement.  These changes include, but are not limited to:  (a) changing 
the funding source for the project; or (b) changes implemented by the 
Council during project close-out or processing final payment for the 
project like:  revising the project budget, revising the dollar amount sub-
awarded to Sub-Recipient, or updating Appendix III.  In the event that 
the Council needs to implement these types of changes, the Council 
does not have to obtain Sub-Recipient’s written assent in advance; 
however, the Council will notify Sub-Recipient of the change so that 
Sub-Recipient has the information for its records.  It is within the 
Council’s sole discretion to determine which minor changes to the 
Agreement require an amendment and which can be effected as stated 
in Paragraph 10, Part (a)(vi).  If the Agreement includes the provision of 
grant funds, then a change that will result in an increase in the total 
amount paid by the Council for the project to Sub-Recipient is not a   



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 14 of 29 

“minor change.”  If the Agreement is for the provision of GFES only, 
then any update to Appendix III is considered a “minor change”, even if 
the change results in an increase in the total value of the Agreement. 

2. In the event that MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS implement changes to the 
Council’s grant agreement or grant budget, and these changes affect 
the terms of the Agreement, the Council will notify Sub-Recipient of the 
change and the change will take effect immediately upon the date 
provided in the Council’s notification to Sub-Recipient.  In the event of 
this type of change, the Council does not need to obtain Sub-Recipient’s 
written assent to the change.  The Council’s notification will be in 
writing. 

c. Other Requests.  In the event that either party needs to seek approval for changes or 
request other changes or authorizations that are not specifically noted in Paragraph 10, 
the party shall submit its written request to the other party’s point of contact 
designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2) or (a)(ii)(1), as applicable.  The party’s request 
must include both a detailed description of the change or other item for which approval 
is sought and a rationale/justification for the request.  The party receiving the request 
will notify the party making the request in writing of its decision. 

11. Disputes, Remedies & Termination. 

a. Disputes.  Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under the Agreement that is 
not disposed of by the Parties’ mutual agreement must be decided by the Executive 
Director, East-West Gateway Council of Governments, who shall mail or otherwise 
furnish a copy of its decision to Sub-Recipient.  This decision will be final and conclusive 
unless Sub-Recipient mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal concerning the 
question of fact to the Executive Director.  Sub-Recipient shall submit its written appeal 
to the Council within thirty (30) calendar days of Sub-Recipient’s receipt of a copy of the 
Executive Director’s decision.  The Executive Director shall arrange a formal hearing 
within fifteen (15) calendar days after the Executive Director’s receipt of Sub-Recipient’s 
appeal.  The hearing officer must be a person mutually agreed upon by the Executive 
Director and Sub-Recipient.  The hearing officer will send both Sub-Recipient and the 
Executive Director a notice that specifies the date, time, and place for the hearing.  The 
hearing officer’s notice must be sent not less than five (5) business days in advance of 
the hearing.  At the hearing, Sub-Recipient and the Council will have the right to present 
witnesses and give evidence concerning questions of fact.  The hearing officer shall give 
their decision to both Parties within five (5) business days of the close of the hearing.  
Pending final decision of an appeal to the Executive Director, Sub-Recipient shall 
proceed diligently with the performance of the Agreement.  Nothing in this Paragraph 
11, Part (a) will be construed as the Executive Director or hearing officer making final 
decisions regarding any questions of law.  “Receipt” is defined in Paragraph 16, Part 
(c)(ii)(2). 

b. Remedies.  Where Sub-Recipient violates, breaches, or otherwise fails to comply with 
the terms of the Agreement, the Council, in its sole discretion, may: 

i. terminate or suspend the Agreement, in whole or in part, 

ii. order a stoppage of the work, 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 15 of 29 

iii. repossess or require Sub-Recipient to transfer ownership of any GFES,  

iv. recommend that the funding agency initiate suspension or debarment 
proceedings against Sub-Recipient, 

v. deem Sub-Recipient ineligible to receive any further sub-awards from the 
Council until the deficiency is corrected, or 

vi. pursue any other available legal or equitable remedy. 

c. Termination. 

i. In accordance with Paragraph 11, Part (c), the Council may, in its sole discretion, 
terminate the Agreement for default or convenience.  The termination may be 
of the Agreement in whole or in part.   

1. Default means Sub-Recipient commits any one or combination of the 
actions described in Paragraph 11, Parts (c)(i)(1)(a) – (g).   

a. Sub-Recipient has failed or is failing to perform.  “Has failed or is 
failing to perform” means:   

i. Sub-Recipient has not made or is not making progress in 
the work,  

ii. Sub-Recipient has not met or is not meeting project 
deadlines,  

iii. Sub-Recipient has not complied or is not complying with 
the requirements for GFES described in Paragraph 4,  

iv. Sub-Recipient has not complied or is not complying with 
the reporting requirements defined in Paragraph 8, or.     

v. Sub-Recipient has not complied or is not complying with 
the monitoring provision described in Paragraph 15, 
Part (a)(iii). 

b. Except for the provisions noted in Paragraph 11, Part (c)(i)(1)(g), 
Sub-Recipient has violated or is violating a provision of the 
Agreement. 

c. Sub-Recipient has not complied or is not complying with any 
federal, state, or local laws or any regulations that are pertinent 
to the Agreement, as the noncompliance is determined by the 
Council, MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS.  

d. Sub-Recipient has engaged in or is engaging in the unauthorized 
use of the GFES which means that Sub-Recipient has used or is 
using the GFES for any purpose other than that provided for in 
the Agreement.  

  



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 16 of 29 

e. Sub-Recipient engaged in or is engaging in a misrepresentation 
of any type during the sub-award process, the invoicing / billing 
process, or the reporting process, which if known to the Council, 
MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS would have resulted in the Council not 
issuing a sub-award to Sub-Recipient or the Council not 
providing GFES to Sub-Recipient. 

f. Sub-Recipient has failed or is failing to disclose a/an:   

i. after-discovered conflict of interest,    

ii. erroneous certification,  

iii. violation described in Paragraph 8, Part (c), or  

iv. debarment / suspension action initiated or instituted by 
any state or federal government entity. 

g. Sub-Recipient has violated or is violating any part of Paragraph 
12 or any part of Paragraph 13.     

2. Convenience means whenever it is in the best interest of the Council, 
including but not limited to:   

a. at any time when MoOHS or DHS, including any of its agencies, 
cancels, rescinds, terminates, or otherwise modifies the 
agreement that it has with the Council whether in whole or in 
part,  

b. at any time when MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS does not have or does 
not provide funding for the project,  

c. if MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS does not provide the approvals 
required by Paragraph 15, Part (a)(iv), or 

d. at any time when the Council no longer desires to support the 
project or to support Sub-Recipient’s efforts for the project. 

ii. Cure Period.  Except as indicated in provisions of the Agreement that an 
immediate termination of the Agreement is permitted, upon Sub-Recipient’s 
default of the Agreement, the Council will provide Sub-Recipient a cure period 
as follows: 

1. For a default described in Paragraph 11, Part (c)(i)(1)(a), Sub-Recipient 
will have a cure period of forty-eight (48) hours (or a longer period as 
the Council may allow) after Sub-Recipient’s receipt from the Council of 
a written notice specifying the default. 

a. Exception.  Upon Sub-Recipient’s fourth (4th) failure to meet a 
project deadline, the Council may, in its sole discretion, 
immediately terminate the Agreement without providing Sub-
Recipient any period to cure the default.  This exception applies 
even if the Council has not previously provided Sub-Recipient a 
written notice of default.  “Failure to meet a project deadline” 
means Sub-Recipient does not meet a project deadline and the 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 17 of 29 

Council has not provided an express written approval that 
extends the deadline.  The Council’s approval must be provided 
as stated in Paragraph 10. 

2. For a default described in Paragraph 11, Parts (c)(i)(1)(b), Sub-Recipient 
will have a cure period of seven (7) business days (or a longer period as 
the Council may allow) after Sub-Recipient’s receipt from the Council of 
a written notice specifying the default. 

3. For a default described in Paragraph 11, Parts (c)(i)(1)(c) – (g), Sub-
Recipient will not be provided a cure period, and the Council may, in its 
sole discretion, immediately terminate the Agreement without any 
penalty to the Council. 

4. Failure to Cure a Default.  If Sub-Recipient fails to cure a default within 
the cure period specified in Paragraph 11, Parts (c)(ii)(1) – (2), then the 
Council, in its sole discretion, may immediately terminate the 
Agreement without any penalty to the Council.   

iii. Any termination must be effected by the Council’s delivery to Sub-Recipient of a 
written notice specifying whether termination is for the default of Sub-Recipient 
or for the convenience of the Council and the extent to which the Agreement is 
terminated (“Termination Notice”).  The termination will be effective upon Sub-
Recipient’s receipt of the Termination Notice.  “Receipt” is defined in Paragraph 
16, Part (c)(ii)(2).   

12. Conflicts of Interests & Gratuities. 

a. Conflicts of Interests. 

i. Interest of Sub-Recipient.  Sub-Recipient covenants that it presently has no 
interest and shall not acquire any interest (direct or indirect) which would 
conflict in any manner or degree with the work Sub-Recipient must perform 
under the Agreement.  In the performance of the Agreement, Sub-Recipient will 
not employ any person having these types of interests.  Sub-Recipient will 
establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a 
purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of a personal or 
organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 

ii. Interest of Members of or Delegates to Congress.  Sub-Recipient shall not 
admit any members of or delegates to the Congress of the United States to any 
share or part of the Agreement or to any benefit arising from the Agreement. 

b. Gratuities.  If the Council finds that Sub-Recipient or any agent or representative of Sub-
Recipient offered or gave gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise) to 
any official, employee or agent of the Council (including the St. Louis Area Regional 
Response System or “STARRS”), MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS and the gratuities were given 
with a view toward securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to 
the awarding or amending, or the making of any determination with respect to the   



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 18 of 29 

performance of the Agreement, then the Council may immediately terminate the 
Agreement and may pursue other rights and remedies provided by law or under the 
Agreement.  The Council’s finding must be reached after the Council provides notice to 
Sub-Recipient and conducts a hearing on the matter. 

13. Certifications. 

a. Lobbying Certification.   

i. Sub-Recipient certifies compliance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352, and implemented at 
44 CFR Part 18 covering government-wide restrictions on lobbying, which 
provides that no federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by 
or on behalf of Sub-Recipient, to any person for influence or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal 
grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

ii. Sub-Recipient further certifies that if any funds other than federal appropriated 
funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting 
to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 
Sub-Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of 
Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions. 

iii. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when the Council determined whether to enter into this transaction.  
Sub-Recipient’s submission of this certification is a prerequisite for the Council 
making or entering into this transaction, as the requirement is imposed by 31 
U.S.C. § 1352.  Any person who fails to file the required certification will be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 
for each failure to file the required certification. 

iv. Sub-Recipient shall include the language of Paragraph 13, Parts (a)(i) – (iii) in the 
contracts documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including subcontracts, 
subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans and cooperative contracts) and 
that all subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

v. Prohibition on Lobbying.  Sub-Recipient shall not use any federal funds, either 
directly or indirectly in support of the enactment, repeal, modification or 
adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government, without 
the express prior written approval of the Council, MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS. 

b. Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters Certification. 

i. Sub-Recipient certifies that: 

1. it will comply with Executive Order 12549, Executive Order 12689, and 2 
CFR Part 180 as supplemented by 2 CFR Part 3000, 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 19 of 29 

2. to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its principals are not 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency,  

3. it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with 
a person who is or an entity that is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 
transaction, unless authorized in writing, by the Council, and 

4. it shall review the “Excluded Parties Listing System” at 
www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/ and the Missouri “Suspended 
Vendors List” at https://oa.mo.gov/sites/default/files/suspven.pdf  to 
ensure that it does not enter into any lower tier covered transaction 
with a person who or firm that is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 
transaction.  

ii. Sub-Recipient’s certification is a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance was placed when the Council determined whether to enter into this 
transaction.  If it is later determined that Sub-Recipient knowingly rendered an 
erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal 
government, the Council may terminate the Agreement for cause.  Sub-
Recipient shall provide immediate written notice to the Council if at any time 
Sub-Recipient learns that its certification was erroneous because of changed 
circumstances.   

iii. Sub-Recipient shall include Paragraph 13, Parts (b)(i)(1) – (4) in all lower tier 
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.  
Sub-Recipient may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless Sub-Recipient knows 
the certification is erroneous. 

c. Federal Debt Status Certification.  In order to be eligible to receive payments under the 
Agreement, Sub-Recipient must be non-delinquent in its repayment of any federal debt, 
including but not limited to, delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit disallowances, and 
benefits overpayments.  Sub-Recipient certifies that it is not currently delinquent in its 
repayment of any federal debt and shall notify the Council immediately if Sub-Recipient 
will be in breach of this Paragraph 13, Part (c).  The Council may immediately terminate 
the Agreement in the event that Sub-Recipient breaches this Paragraph 13, Part (c). 

d. Non-Supplanting Certification.  Sub-Recipient certifies that the federal financial 
assistance anticipated under the Agreement will be used to supplement existing local 
funds or resources and will not be used to replace (supplant) local funds or resources 
that have been appropriated for the same purpose.  Sub-Recipient shall provide, upon 
the Council’s request, documentation certifying that a reduction in non-federal 
resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt of federal 
financial assistance. 

  

https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/
https://oa.mo.gov/sites/default/files/suspven.pdf


 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 20 of 29 

e. Duplication of Benefits Certification.  Sub-Recipient is required to comply with 2 CFR Part 
200 § 200.405(c) which provides that any cost allocable to a particular federal award or 
cost objective under the principles provided for in the CFR may not be charged to other 
federal awards in order to overcome fund deficiencies.  Sub-Recipient certifies that it 
will comply with these requirements and acknowledges that, in the event that Sub-
Recipient fails to so comply, the Council may immediately terminate the Agreement.   

14. Inspections and Access to Records & Records Retention. 

a. Inspections and Access to Records.  Sub-Recipient shall allow the Council, MoOHS, 
FEMA, DHS, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of these entities’ duly 
authorized representatives, to review and inspect the work performed under the 
Agreement or the GFES.  Sub-Recipient shall also provide each entity access to Sub-
Recipient’s premises and all documents, papers, or other records of every description 
which are pertinent to the Agreement.  Sub-Recipient will grant this access to each 
entity for purposes of the entity making audits, examination, excerpts, and 
transcriptions.  This right of access also includes timely and reasonable access to Sub-
Recipient’s personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to the records.  
Each entity’s inspection may occur at any time.  The Council, if prior notice is warranted 
and possible, will notify Sub-Recipient in advance of the Council’s intent to conduct an 
inspection.  The right of access to conduct inspections, audits, examinations, etc. that is 
described in this Paragraph 14, Part (a) shall remain in place for as long as the records 
are retained by Sub-Recipient or for the term described in Paragraph 2, Part (b), 
whichever is the longer period, and does not expire at the end of the records retention 
period described in Paragraph 14, Part (b).  

b. Records Retention.   

i. Sub-Recipient shall retain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical 
records, and all other records pertinent to the Agreement.  Sub-Recipient shall 
retain these records for at least five (5) years from the date provided by the 
Council in writing.  Sub-Recipient’s retention is required for purposes of state 
and federal examination and audit.  Sub-Recipient may retain the records in an 
electronic, machine readable format. 

ii. The retention requirement extends, but is not limited to, books of original entry, 
source documents supporting accounting transactions, the general ledger, 
subsidiary ledgers, personnel and payroll records, cancelled checks, and related 
documents and records.  Source documents include copies of the Agreement 
and Sub-Recipient’s financial and narrative reports.  Personnel and payroll 
records include the time and attendance reports for all individuals paid as part 
of the project, whether the individuals are employed full-time or part-time. 

iii. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records 
has started before the expiration of the five (5) year retention period described 
in Paragraph 14, Part (b)(i), then Sub-Recipient shall retain the records until all 
litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and 
final action taken. 

iv. The records retention period may be extended if Sub-Recipient is notified in 
writing by the Council that the records retention period has been extended.  



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 21 of 29 

The Council’s written notice will specify the time frame for the extended records 
retention period. 

v. Sub-Recipient shall adequately protect records against fire or other damage. 

15. Administrative & Statutory and Regulatory Requirements. 

a. Administrative Requirements.   

i. Council, MoOHS, and DHS Requirements.  Sub-Recipient shall at all times 
comply with all applicable MoOHS, FEMA, and DHS regulations, policies, 
procedures, and directives, including without limitation, the requirements 
provided in the Omni Circular, administrative requirements of MoOHS’s 
“Administrative Guide for Homeland Security Grants” and Information Bulletins, 
as each may be amended or updated from time-to-time and that are available 
at: dps.mo.gov/dir/programs/ohs/grantstraining; and any other regulations, 
policies, procedures, and directives that govern the project whether listed 
directly or by reference in the Agreement.  Sub-Recipient acknowledges and 
understands that the administrative requirements of MoOHS are effective upon 
issuance, and that Sub-Recipient shall comply with the then-current 
requirements.  Sub-Recipient’s failure to so comply will constitute a material 
breach of the Agreement.   

ii. Incorporation of MoOHS Agreement.  All contractual provisions required by 
MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS are set forth in Appendix IV. Sub-Recipient shall comply 
with Articles I through XIL of Appendix IV and shall include each of these 
provisions in any subcontract that Sub-Recipient enters into under the 
Agreement.  Except when the Agreement provides more restrictive terms, all of 
the MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS mandated terms will be deemed to control in the 
event of a conflict with other provisions contained in the Agreement.  Sub-
Recipient shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply 
with any Council requests that would cause the Council to be in violation of 
Appendix IV. 

iii. Sub-Recipient Risk Assessment and Monitoring.   

1. Sub-Recipient Risk Assessment.  Pursuant to the Omni Circular § 
200.231(b) the Council conducted a risk assessment of Sub-Recipient 
and assigned Sub-Recipient a risk rating with respect to Sub-Recipient’s 
ability to comply with the requirements expressed in the Agreement 
and that govern the grant program.  Based on the Council’s assessment, 
Sub-Recipient was assigned a low risk rating; therefore, the Agreement 
does not include any special terms or conditions.   

a. Risk Rating Modification.  The Council may modify Sub-
Recipient’s risk rating based on the results of the monitoring.  If 
the Council modifies Sub-Recipient’s to a level that requires 
additional monitoring or special terms and conditions, the 
Council will notify Sub-Recipient in writing via a method 
described in Paragraph 16, Part (c)(i).  If special terms and 
conditions need to be added to the Agreement, the changes 

http://dps.mo.gov/dir/programs/ohs/grantstraining


 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 22 of 29 

must be implemented through a written amendment to the 
Agreement signed by both Parties. 

2. Monitoring.  Throughout the term of the Agreement described in 
Paragraph 2, Part (a) and the period described in Paragraph 2, Part (b), 
the Council will conduct regular monitoring of Sub-Recipient, which may 
include site visits.  Sub-Recipient must cooperate in the Council’s efforts 
to conduct the monitoring.  Sub-Recipient’s cooperation includes, but is 
not limited to:   

a. providing the Council timely access to Sub-Recipient’s facilities 
and records that pertain to the Agreement;  

b. providing, in a timely manner, copies of documents, reports, 
and other materials that pertain to the Agreement;  

c. making its staff available to meet with the Council during the 
monitoring; and  

d. timely responding to the Council’s requests for information.     

iv. Environmental and Historic Preservation (“EHP”) Reviews.   

1. EHP Approval Required.  The project anticipated by the Agreement 
does not include work that is subject to EHP review and approval.  Sub-
Recipient may not begin any work that may require an EHP review and 
approval until it has been notified in writing by the Council that the EHP 
approval has been obtained for the Project Site(s) or that an EHP 
approval is not required for the Project Sites(s) and the Agreement has 
been amended to include the required work.  Sub-Recipient shall 
comply with all conditions placed on the project as a result of the EHP 
review or any subsequent EHP modification review.   

2. Modifications.  Once Sub-Recipient has notified the Council of the 
location for the work (“Project Site(s)”) and MoOHS / FEMA has either 
provided its EHP approval for the Project Site(s) or has indicated that an 
EHP approval is not required for the Project Site(s), any change to the 
approved project scope of work, as described in Paragraph 3, Part (b), or 
the Project Site(s) will require re-evaluation for compliance with the 
EHP requirements.   

a. Sub-Recipient must not undertake any changes to the approved 
scope of work or the Project Site(s) without the prior written 
approval of one of the Council’s authorized officials as 
designated in Paragraph 10, Part (a).  Sub-Recipient shall notify 
the Council in writing, no less than seven (7) calendar days after 
Sub-Recipient becomes aware that a change to the approved 
scope of work or the Project Site(s) is required or needed.  Sub-
Recipient must submit its notification to the Council’s point of 
contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2).   

  



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 23 of 29 

b. In the event that changes to the scope of work or the Project 
Site(s) are required, Sub-Recipient must cease all work for the 
project until Sub-Recipient is notified in writing by the Council 
that an EHP modification has been provided by MoOHS / FEMA 
and that Sub-Recipient is authorized to continue the project 
work.   

3. Ground Disturbance.  Ground disturbance activities are not anticipated 
for the project and are not authorized.  If ground disturbance activities 
occur during project implementation, Sub-Recipient must immediately 
cease project work in that area and notify the Council in writing.  Sub-
Recipient may not continue the project work unless and until it has 
received written authorization from the Council.  Sub-Recipient must 
submit its notification to the Council’s point of contact designated in 
Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2). 

4. Ineligible Costs.  Any installation activities or ground disturbance 
activities that have been initiated before the full EHP review and 
approval or any installation activities or ground disturbance activities 
that have been initiated before any required EHP modification is 
obtained could result in a non-compliance finding.  Additionally, the 
costs associated with the unauthorized / non-approved activities may 
be deemed ineligible for reimbursement.  If the costs are deemed 
ineligible by the Council, MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS, these costs shall 
become the sole responsibility of Sub-Recipient.  If the Council has 
reimbursed Sub-Recipient for any costs associated with the 
unauthorized / non-approved activities, then Sub-Recipient must 
return to the Council all amounts paid by the Council, plus an amount 
due for any interest that is charged to the Council by the funding 
agency for these ineligible costs.   

5. Cooperation Required.  Sub-Recipient must cooperate fully with the 
Council, MoOHS, FEMA, DHS, or any combination of these entities 
during the EHP review or any EHP modification review process, 
including, but not limited to:  providing all requested documentation 
and information, granting access to the Project Site(s), and fulfilling 
information requests in a timely manner.     

b. Statutory and Regulatory Requirements.  

i. Civil Rights.   

1. Nondiscrimination Statutes, Orders, and Regulations.  As required by 
federal law, Sub-Recipient certifies that it will comply with all applicable 
federal and state statutes, executive orders, and regulations, relating to 
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity, including, but not limited to 
those described in Articles VIII, XV, XVII, XVIII, XXV, XXVIII, XXXV, and 
XXXVIII of Appendix IV. 

2. Equal Employment Opportunity.  Sub-Recipient shall comply with the 
requirements of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 24 of 29 

“Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order 
11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented by U.S. Department of 
Labor (“DOL”) regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60). 

3. Nondiscrimination Assurances.  Sub-Recipient shall not discriminate on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, or age of 
an individual in the performance of the Agreement.  Sub-Recipient shall 
carry out the applicable requirements of 6 CFR Part 21 in the award and 
administration of DHS assisted contracts.   

4. Sub-Recipient’s failure to carry out the requirements set forth in 
Paragraph 15, Part (b)(i) will constitute a breach of contract and the 
Council may enforce certain remedies against Sub-Recipient including, 
but not limited to, those remedies expressed in Paragraph 11, Part (b). 

ii. Freedom of Information and Missouri Sunshine Act.  Sub-Recipient 
understands and acknowledges that the Missouri Sunshine Act (“Sunshine Act”), 
Section 610-010 et seq. RSMo, may apply to the information and documents, 
both paper and electronic, submitted to the Council regarding the work 
performed under the Agreement.  All materials submitted to the Council that 
are related to the project work will become agency records and are or may be 
subject to the Sunshine Act and to public release through individual Sunshine 
Act requests, unless the Council determines that a valid exemption under the 
Sunshine Act applies.  The Council has adopted a presumption of disclosure; 
therefore, the Council does not consent to honor any “routine” confidentiality 
statements that may appear on any printed or electronic documents or 
correspondence (e.g. letters, e-mails) that accompany the submission of project 
information, absent a requirement under federal or state law or regulation that 
the information must be kept confidential.  Sub-Recipient shall clearly and 
specifically mark genuinely confidential or privileged information and shall 
justify the information as confidential or privileged.  The Council will review the 
documents and information that are the subject of each Sunshine Act request, 
as permitted by federal or state law or regulation, and determine the extent to 
which the Council must or should exercise its discretion and withhold those 
documents.  Further, Sub-Recipient understands and acknowledges that the 
applicability of the Sunshine Act or the Council’s exercise of discretion to 
withhold a document does not affect MoOHS’s, FEMA’s, or DHS’s right to make 
a separate determination about the disclosure of a document related to the 
project under the Sunshine Act or the Federal Freedom of Information Act 
(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552; however, if MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS makes the 
determination that a document may be disclosed under the Sunshine Act or 
FOIA, the Council will presume that the document is subject to disclosure under 
the Sunshine Act unless Sub-Recipient demonstrates otherwise. 

iii. Audit Required.  If, during its fiscal year, Sub-Recipient expends seven hundred 
and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000.00) or more of federal financial assistance 
from all sources, including federal funds and GFES received under the 
Agreement, Sub-Recipient is required to have an independent annual single or 
program-specific audit conducted in accordance with the Omni Circular, 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 25 of 29 

specifically 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements (“Subpart F”).  Sub-
Recipient shall submit a copy of its audit report to the Council via mail or e-
mail or provide the Council with an internet link to the audit report via e-mail 
within thirty (30) calendar days after Sub-Recipient receives a copy of its 
auditor’s report.  Subject to the requirements of the Omni Circular Subpart F, if 
Sub-Recipient expends less than seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars 
($750,000.00) of federal financial assistance in its fiscal year, then Sub-Recipient 
may be exempt from the auditing requirements for that year; however, records 
must be available for review or audit by applicable state and federal authorities.  
If Sub-Recipient is exempt from the auditing requirements, then Sub-Recipient 
shall submit to the Council a letter certifying that Sub-Recipient is exempt from 
the auditing requirements.  If this letter is required, then Sub-Recipient shall 
submit its letter to the Council no less often than annually during the 
performance period.  Sub-Recipient’s audit report or letter must be submitted 
to the Council’s point of contact designated in Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2).  The 
Council reserves the right to independently audit or review the expenditures 
made under the Agreement. 

iv. Copyrights.  Under 2 CFR Part 200 § 200.315(b), DHS / FEMA reserves a royalty-
free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, 
and to authorize others to reproduce, publish, or use, for federal government 
purposes, the copyright in any work developed under the Agreement and any 
rights of copyright to which Sub-Recipient purchases ownership with the funds, 
whether in whole or in part, under the Agreement.  Unless broader rights are 
granted elsewhere in the Agreement, the Council, at a minimum, reserves the 
same right that is granted to DHS / FEMA under this Paragraph 15, Part (b)(iv). 

v. Patents.  In the event that the work Sub-Recipient completes under the 
Agreement results in a discovery or an invention or a discovery or invention 
arises or is developed during the course of the Agreement, then Sub-Recipient 
shall comply with all relevant federal laws, regulations, executive orders, or 
memorandums that pertain to the federal government’s rights with regard to 
inventions or discoveries that arise from, are developed during the course of, or 
are created under an agreement supported in whole or in part with federal 
funds.  Specifically, Sub-Recipient will adhere to the Bayh-Dole Act, 35 U.S.C. §§ 
200 et seq., as amended, and implementing regulations at 2 CFR Part 200 § 
200.315(c) and 37 CFR Part 401.  Sub-Recipient shall promptly report inventions 
or discoveries to the Council, but in no event shall Sub-Recipient make this 
report later than seven (7) calendar days after a report is required; this report 
must be made in accordance with Paragraph 16, Part (c)(i).  Sub-Recipient shall 
cooperate fully with the Council, MoOHS, FEMA, or DHS as it pertains to the 
federal government determining it rights to any patentable materials or items.  
As stated in 37 CFR Part 401.14, at a minimum, DHS / FEMA reserves a 
nonexclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-up license to practice or have 
practiced for or on behalf of the United States the subject invention throughout 
the world.  Unless broader rights are granted elsewhere in the Agreement, the 
Council, at a minimum, reserves the same license that is granted to DHS / FEMA 
under this Paragraph 15, Part (b)(v). 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 26 of 29 

vi. Other Data.  DHS / FEMA has the right to obtain, reproduce, publish, or 
otherwise use the data produced under the Agreement and to authorize others 
to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise this data for federal government 
purposes.  Unless broader rights are granted elsewhere in the Agreement, the 
Council, at a minimum, reserves the same right that is granted to DHS / FEMA 
under this Paragraph 15, Part (b)(vi).  As described in 2 CFR Part 200 § 200.315 
(e), Sub-Recipient is required to provide to the Council, DHS, FEMA, or any of 
these entities’ duly authorized representatives a copy of research data 
produced under the Agreement.   

vii. Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act. 

1. Sub-Recipient shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, and 
regulations issued under the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 
7401 et seq. and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 
33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 et seq.  Sub-Recipient shall report each recognized 
violation to the Council and understands and the Council will, in turn, 
report each recognized violation as required to assure notification to 
DHS or FEMA and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency 
Regional Office. 

2. Sub-Recipient shall include these requirements in each subcontract 
made under the Agreement that exceeds $150,000. 

viii. Labor Statutes and Regulations.  As applicable, Sub-Recipient shall comply and 
ensure compliance on behalf of its employees, with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 
U.S.C. §§ 3141-3148) as supplemented by U.S. DOL regulations (29 CFR Part 5), 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145 and 18 U.S.C. § 874) as 
supplemented by DOL regulations (29 CFR Part 3), and Sections 3702 and 3704 
of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 3701-3708) 
as supplemented by DOL regulations (29 CFR Part 5). 

16. Contact Information, Mailing Addresses & Notices.   

a. Contact Information. 

i. The Council’s Point of Contact.  The Council’s points of contact are as follows: 

1. The point of contact for reports (e.g. inventory reports, mileage logs, 
progress reports) is Leah Watkins, East-West Gateway Council of 
Governments, 1 S. Memorial Drive, Suite 1600, St. Louis, MO 63102; 
leah.watkins@ewgateway.org; 314-421-4220 (phone) or 314-231-6120 
(fax). 

2. The point of contact for questions regarding the provisions of the 
Agreement, budgeting, and approvals / authorizations is Staci Alvarez, 
East-West Gateway Council of Governments, 1 S. Memorial Drive, Suite 
1600, St. Louis, MO 63102; staci.alvarez@ewgateway.org; 314-421-4220 
(phone) or 314-231-6120 (fax).    

  

mailto:leah.watkins@ewgateway.org
mailto:staci.alvarez@ewgateway.org


 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 27 of 29 

3. The project point of contact is Nick Gragnani, STARRS, 1 S. Memorial 
Drive, Suite 1600, St. Louis, MO 63102; nick.gragnani@ewgateway.org; 
314-421-4220 (phone) or 314-231-6120 (fax). 

ii. Sub-Recipient’s Point of Contact.  Sub-Recipient’s point of contact is as follows: 

1. Abraham Cook, Director, Franklin County EMA / Communications / 911, 
401B E. Springfield Ave., Union, MO 63084; acook@franklinmo.net; 636-
583-1679. 

iii. Changes to Points of Contact or Addresses.  The Parties shall inform each other 
of any changes in points of contact and contact information, including the 
organization’s name, address, telephone number, and e-mail.  This notice may 
be given by one or both of a fax or an e-mail to the point of contact identified in 
Paragraph 16, Part (a)(i)(2) or (ii)(1), respectively, or one of the methods noted 
in Paragraph 16, Part (c)(ii).  

b. Mailing Addresses.  The mailing addresses of the Council and Sub-Recipient are as 
follows: 

i. The Council: 

Executive Director 
East-West Gateway Council of Governments 
1 S. Memorial Drive, Suite 1600 
St. Louis, MO 63102 

ii. Sub-Recipient: 

Director 
Franklin County EMA 
401B E. Springfield Ave. 
Union, MO 63084 

c. Notices.   

i. Faxed / E-mailed Notices Allowed.  Except as described in Paragraph 16, Part 
(c)(ii), any written notices, requests, or authorizations (together referred to as 
“Notices”) that are described in the Agreement may be submitted and received 
via fax or e-mail.  Notices described in this Paragraph 16, Part (c)(i) will be 
effective upon first receipt, unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  For 
Notices described in this Paragraph 16, Part (c)(i), “receipt” means when the 
Notice is received by the designated point of contact of either Sub-Recipient or 
the Council as evidenced by the date and time stamp electronically assigned to 
the fax or e-mail. 

  

mailto:nick.gragnani@ewgateway.org
mailto:acook@franklinmo.net


 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 28 of 29 

ii. Mailed / Delivered Notices Required.   

1. Notices required by Paragraph 11 will be deemed given only if given in 
writing, and delivered to the party’s address noted in Paragraph 16, Part 
(b) by:        

a. hand delivery,   

b. Federal Express (“FedEx”), United Parcel Service (“UPS”), or 
similar service, or   

c. U.S. Postal Service registered or certified mail, postage prepaid 
and return receipt requested.       

2. Notices described in Paragraph 16, Part (c)(ii)(1) will be effective upon 
first receipt, unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  For notices 
described in Paragraph 16, Part (c)(ii)(1), “receipt” means when the 
notice arrives at the address noted in Paragraph 16, Part (b), as 
indicated by the first of either one of:  the signature of a person 
employed by or designated by the Council or Sub-Recipient, or the 
delivery date noted on mail/delivery service tracking receipt/slip/other 
tracking document including internet based or electronic documents 
(i.e. e-mail or information downloaded from a website). 

17. General Terms. 

a. Flow Down Provisions.   Sub-Recipient shall include certain provisions of the Agreement, 
including the Appendices, in all subcontracts that Sub-Recipient enters into under the 
Agreement.  Sub-Recipient will coordinate with the Council to ensure that all of the 
required flow-down provisions are properly included in any subcontract Sub-Recipient 
issues under the Agreement. 

b. Information Obtained Through Internet Links.  The Council does not guarantee the 
accuracy of the information accessed through the internet links provided in the 
Agreement.  Sub-Recipient understands that any information it obtains through an 
internet link contained in the Agreement may not represent an official version of the 
federal law, state law, regulation, or directive and may be inaccurate; therefore, any 
information obtained through an internet link is neither incorporated by reference nor 
made a part of the Agreement unless the information represents the official version of 
the law, regulation, or directive. 

c. Federal Changes.  The Council and Sub-Recipient understand that federal laws, 
regulations, and directives applicable on the date on that DHS awards federal assistance 
for the Agreement may be modified from time-to-time.  In particular, new federal laws, 
regulations, and directives may become effective after the effective date of the 
Agreement.  The most recent of the federal laws, regulations, and directives will apply 
to the administration of the Agreement at any particular time, except to the extent that 
DHS determines otherwise in writing. 

d. No Obligation by the Federal Government.  

i. The Council and Sub-Recipient acknowledge that, despite any concurrence by 
the federal government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the 



 

 

CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix I to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 

Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 
Page 29 of 29 

underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the federal 
government, the federal government is not a party to the Agreement and will 
not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Council, Sub-Recipient, or 
any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any 
matter resulting from the underlying agreement. 

ii. Sub-Recipient shall include Paragraph 17, Part (d)(i) in each subcontract 
financed in whole or in part with federal funds provided by DHS.  Sub-Recipient 
shall not modify Paragraph 17, Part (d)(i), except to identify the subcontractor 
that will be subject to its provisions. 

e. Assignability.  Sub-Recipient shall not assign, transfer, or delegate any interest in the 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the Council.    

f. Governing Law.  The Agreement will be interpreted under and governed by the laws of 
the State of Missouri. 

g. Jurisdiction and Venue.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or other judicial proceeding to 
enforce or construe the Agreement, or regarding its alleged breach, will be instituted 
only in the Circuit Court of St. Louis City, Missouri. 

h. Waiver.  No waiver by either party of any default will be deemed as a waiver of any prior 
or subsequent default of the same or other provisions of the Agreement, or of the 
Parties’ right to insist on strict compliance with the Agreement after a waiver is given. 

i. Agreement Binding on Successors.  Unless otherwise prohibited by the Agreement, the 
Agreement will be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the Parties of the 
Agreement, their heirs, administrators, and successors. 

j. Integration.  The Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties, and 
revokes and supersedes all prior agreements between the Parties and is intended as a 
final expression of their agreement.  It may not be modified or amended except in 
writing and when accomplished in accordance with Paragraph 10.   

k. Survival of Terms.  All provisions of the Agreement which by their nature should survive 
termination or expiration of the Agreement will survive, including but not limited to:  
provisions regarding equipment and supplies, liability and insurance coverage, 
indemnification, copyrights, patents, other data, audits, inspections, access to records, 
retention of records, and sub-recipient monitoring. 

l. Severability.  In the event that any of the terms or provisions of the Agreement are 
declared void or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining terms and provisions of 
the Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will not be affected by the 
declaration. 

 



Grant Year & Name FAIN Award Date(s) Award Amount

2017 Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) EMW-2017-SS-00047 08/29/2019 (Federal); 09/01/2017 (State) $2,691,400.00

This Appendix II:  Federal Award Information provides the information about the Federal sources of funding for the East-West Gateway 

Council of Governments and Franklin County, Missouri Financial Assistance Sub-Award Agreement.

Appendix II:  Federal Award Information

CFDA # 97.067 - 2017 UASI Equipment and Supplies

Appendix II to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO

Financial Assistance Sub-Award - Grant # 49887-EQSUPP

Page 1 of 1



Item Description Purpose / Project

Item Type 

(Equipment or 

Supply)

QTY Per Unit Cost Per Unit Discounts
Per Unit 

Acquisition Cost

Total Acquisition 

Costs
Project Site(s) CFDA # Grant Year & Name FAIN

Level A Chemical Protective Suits HazMat Equipment 3 $3,100.00 $0.00 $3,100.00 $9,300.00 97.067 2017 Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) EMW-2017-SS-00047

Air Monitoring and Detection Software Updates HazMat Equipment 2 $6,100.00 $0.00 $6,100.00 $12,200.00 97.067 2017 Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) EMW-2017-SS-00047

Throat Microphones HazMat Equipment 6 $2,600.00 $0.00 $2,600.00 $15,600.00 97.067 2017 Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) EMW-2017-SS-00047

Total Acquisition Costs $37,100.00

Appendix III:  Equipment & Supplies List

This Appendix III:  Equipment & Supplies List describes the grant-funded equipment or supplies that East-West Gateway Council of Governments will provide to Franklin County, Missouri under the terms of the Financial Assistance Sub-Award Agreement.  

6340 Maurice Unnerstall Dr., Washington, MO 63090

CFDA # 97.067 - 2017 UASI - Equipment and Supplies

Appendix III to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO

Financial Assistance Sub-Award - Grant # 49887-EQSUPP

Page 1 of 1



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 1 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 2 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 3 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 4 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 5 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 6 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 7 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 8 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 9 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 10 of 11



CFDA # 97.067 – 2017 UASI Equipment & Supplies 
Appendix IV to the East-West Gateway COG and Franklin County, MO 
Financial Assistance Sub-Award – Grant # 49887-EQSUPP 11 of 11



Commission Order No. 2019-397 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, September 10, 2019 
County of Franklin Report 
 

Commission Order 2019-397 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF  
APPROVING THE CONSENT  
AGENDA AND ALL THE 
ITEMS LISTED THEREON 
 
WHEREAS, in the course of the daily operation of county government certain routine actions are necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain of the routine items referred to above involve either the issuance of licenses, the receipt of funds or 
the authorization of accounts payable and/or abstract of fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the approval of such routine matters can be approved through the use of a “Consent Agenda”; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to afford a better record of what has been approved through the use of the Consent Agenda it has 
been determined that it would be appropriate to pass a commission order weekly which approves all items contained in 
the Consent Agenda. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the County Commission of Franklin County that the Consent Agenda for September 
10, 2019 addressing the below listed items is hereby approved, to wit: 
 

Fees:   Health Dept. Fees – July 2019 
   Health Dept. Fees – August 2019 
   County Clerk Fees – August 2019 
   Circuit Clerk Fees – August 2019 
   Public Administrator Fees – Sept. 2019 
   Treasurer’s Report – July 2019  
   Auditor’s Financial Report – August 2019 
 
Liquor Licenses:   T’s Liquor Lane 9/26/19  
   Meramec State Park 
   Meramec State Park 
   St. Anthony Catholic Church 
   Aldi Foods #16 
   Aldi Foods #5 
   Fas-Trip Convenience Store #107 
   Fas-Trip Convenience Store #102 
   I.C. Fall Festival 9/22/19 
   I.C. Fall Festival 9/22/19 
   Pacific Eagles Aerie 3842 
 
Other:  Union Special Road District Annual Settlement  
 Sullivan Special Road District Annual Settlement 
 Washington Special Road District Annual Settlement 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 






































































































































































































































































































































































































	I. Call to Order
	II. Navigate Presentation
	III. Minutes Approval
	1. August 26, 2019
	2. August 27, 2019
	3. August 29, 2019
	4. August 29, 2019
	5. September 5, 2019

	IV. Public Request for Discussion
	V. Action Items
	a. 2019-388 Authorizing Bank of New York Mellon
	b. 2019-389 Direct Bill Application - Oasis Hotels
	c. 2019-390 Appointment to FCCRB
	d. 2019-391 Fixing Property Tax Rates
	e. 2019-392 Resolution Adoption STL Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	f. 2019-393 Trustee's Sale 
	g. 2019-394 Trustee's Sale
	h. 2019-395 Trustee's Sale
	i. 2019-396 Approving EW Gateway Sub-Award
	j. 2019-397 Consent Agenda

	VI. Discussion Items and Reports
	VII. Adjournment



